
* Denotes items that have supporting documentation provided 
 

 

AGENDA OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

October 18, 2021 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

In light of the status of the ongoing Covid-19 health pandemic the City of Birchwood Village is 
conducting this Special meeting using interactive web-based technology. Pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapter 13D. 021 Subdivision 1(1) the City of Birchwood is declaring that, “an in-person 
meeting or a meeting conducted under section 13D.02 is not practical or prudent because of a health 
pandemic...” 

The meeting will be conducted using the Zoom meeting platform and the details of that are directly 
below for participating. If you plan to attend it is suggested that you familiarize yourself with the 
technology in advance. If you plan to participate than you must either 1) send your name, topic you 
plan to speak on, and the phone number you will be calling from to City Hall by noon the day before 
the meeting; or 2) join the meeting no later than 6:50pm to coordinate with the Moderator.   

The Moderator of the meeting shall be City Administrator Andy Gonyou and all participants, except 
Council Members, shall have their microphones muted unless recognized by the Mayor. Public Forum 
shall be honored using this technology and the meeting will be broadcast via the Cable Commission like 
other meetings. 

City of Birchwood Village is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: Birchwood Village October 18 Special City Council Meeting 
Time: Oct 18, 2021 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87162120254?pwd=Tk10WDU1cFRNM3ZYbm9hb1BvRDJ1UT09  
 
Meeting ID: 871 6212 0254 
Passcode: 446681 
 
APPROVE AGENDA    

CITY BUSINESS – CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approve September 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes* (pp. 3-10) 
B. Approve Treasurer’s Report* (pp. 11-27) 

CITY BUSINESS – REGULAR AGENDA 
A. Second Reading Ord. 2021-10-01, Sec. 308.* (pp. 29-30) 

NOTE: Due to Open Meeting Law restrictions, the City Council 
may be discussing agenda items for the first time.  Your 

patience and understanding is appreciated during this process.  

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/13D.02
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87162120254?pwd=Tk10WDU1cFRNM3ZYbm9hb1BvRDJ1UT09


* Denotes items that have supporting documentation provided 
 

 
a. Council Deliberation 

Time Budget: 10 Minutes 
B. Review Variance Application Case No. 21-05-VB (339 Wildwood Avenue)* (pp. 31-

58) 
i. Minutes from Planning Commission meeting are pages 85-91 

b. Review & Discuss 
C. Review Variance Application Case No. 21-06-VB (469 Lake Avenue)* (pp. 59-83) 

i. Page 83 is information provided by contractor day of 10/07/21 Planning 
Commission meeting, not yet reviewed by City Engineer. 

ii. Minutes from Planning Commission meeting are pages 85-91 
b. Review & Discuss 

D. City Covid-19 Protocols (In-Person vs Virtual Meetings) 
a. Council Deliberation 

ADJOURN 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 1 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
207 BIRCHWOOD AVENUE 
BIRCHWOOD, MINNESOTA 

 
MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2021, 7:00 P.M. 

 
MEMBERS: 
 
Mary Wingfield  Mayor  
Jon Fleck   Councilmember 
Justin McCarthy  Councilmember 
Kevin Woolstencroft  Councilmember 
Mark Foster   Councilmember 
 
STAFF:   
 
Andy Gonyou   City Administrator 
H. Alan Kantrud  City Attorney 
 
GUESTS: 
 
Stan Karwoski Washington County Commissioner (from 7:29 p.m. until 

7:51 p.m.) 
Ruth and Bud Jensen  Birchwood Village Residents 
    
Minutes prepared by Anh Nguyen of Minutes Solutions Inc. from an audio recording. 

    
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
In light of the status of the ongoing COVID-19 health pandemic, the City of Birchwood 
Village is conducting its September, 2021, meeting using interactive web-based 
technology. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13D.021 Subdivision 1(1), the City 
of Birchwood Village is declaring that, “an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted 
under section 13D.02 is not practical or prudent because of a health pandemic...”. 
 
Mayor Wingfield called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Mayor Wingfield requested the addition of the following items to the agenda: 
• City of Birchwood Village Motto 
• BIRCH Snow Removal Contract 
• Meeting with Washington County 
• Possible Monies from the Federal Government  



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 2 

 
On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by Councilmember 
Fleck, it was resolved to approve the agenda, as amended. All in favor; motion 
carried.  

 
4.  OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

 
There was no one to speak for the open public forum. 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A.  Social Media: Follow Birchwood Village on Facebook/Twitter and/or register for the e-

mail list. 
 

B.  Music in the Park 2021: A thank you to all of the volunteers, staff, and musicians.  
 

C.  Centennial Celebration: A video presentation of the event was provided by the Suburban 
Cable Commission.  

 
6. ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION 
 
A. Sheriff Report: A report of law enforcement incidents and citations for August, 2021, was 

provided for the Council’s review. 
 

B. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes: The minutes of the July 22, 2021, Planning 
Commission meeting was provided for the Council’s review. 
 

7.  CITY BUSINESS – CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes: The meeting minutes of the August 10, 2021, 
regular Council meeting was provided for the Council’s review and approval. 

 
B. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes: The meeting minutes of the August 24, 2021, 

special Council meeting was provided for the Council’s review and approval. 
 

C. Approval of the Treasurer’s Report: The Treasurer’s Report for the period ending 
September 9, 2021, was provided for the Council’s review and approval. 

 
On a motion made by Councilmember Woolstencroft, seconded by Councilmember 
Fleck, it was resolved to approve the consent agenda as presented. All in favor; 
motion carried. 
 

8. CITY BUSINESS – REGULAR AGENDA 
 
A. Second Reading Ordinance 2021-07-02, Section 301.055 

 
a. Public Hearing: There were no comments made for the public hearing. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 3 

On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by 
Councilmember Fleck, it was resolved to close the public hearing. All in 
favor; motion carried. 
 

b. Council Deliberation and Approval: The city’s attorney recommended that the 
Council hold over and approve a summary of public document at the next Council 
meeting. 
On a motion made by Councilmember Woolstencroft, seconded by 
Councilmember Foster, it was resolved to adopt the amended code 301.055 
for ordinance 20210-07-02. All in favor; motion carried. 
 
ACTION – The city’s attorney will provide the city’s administrator with a draft 
summary of public document for the Council’s review. 

 
B. First Reading Ordinance 2021-09-01, Section 301.050 
 

a. Public Hearing: There were no comments made for the public hearing. 
 
On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by 
Councilmember Fleck, it was resolved to close the public hearing. All in 
favor; motion carried. 

 
b. Council Deliberation and Scheduling of Second Reading 

 
On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by 
Councilmember Fleck, it was resolved to approve a second hearing of the 
amended code 301.050 including section e: impervious surfaces for 
ordinance 2021-09-01. All in favor; motion carried. 

 
C. 2022 Budget Proposal 

 
The proposed 2022 budget is the same as 2021’s levy of $512,000. 

 
a. Public Hearing: There were no comments made for the public hearing. 

 
On a motion made by Councilmember Foster, seconded by Councilmember 
McCarthy, it was resolved to close the public hearing. All in favor; motion 
carried. 
 

b. Council Deliberation: A proposal will be submitted to Washington County and will 
appear on tax notifications for the December, 2021, Council meeting. 
 

c. Approve for Submission: The 2022 budget will be posted as a public hearing at 
the next Council meeting for approval in December, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 4 

D. Meeting Minutes Service 
 

a. Council Deliberation: The Council discussed that the minute taking service would 
cost approximately $260 monthly for a total of $3,000 to $4,000 annually. The 
Council agreed it would be a good investment in order to allow active staff to help 
with constituents.  
 

b. Approve Resolution 2021–2022 
 

On a motion made by Councilmember Fleck, seconded by Councilmember 
Woolstencroft, it was resolved to approve Minutes Solutions Inc. to provide 
meeting minutes at a cost of $200 up to two hours and $30 for every 
additional half hour. All in favor; motion carried. 
 

E. Village Hall 
 

a. Roof Bids: Mayor Wingfield presented three roofing bids for the Council’s review. 
A proposal was provided by McPhillips Bros. Roofing at a cost of $30,000, Bruette 
Roofing at a cost of approximately $32,000, and Berwald Roofing at a cost of 
$35,000. Berwald Roofing has confirmed that is their best rate. Pelco Construction 
has also provided information to ensure the proper installation of shingles and 
rubber membranes. Mayor Wingfield noted that Thatcher Engineering would need 
to be engaged to ensure the roof is built to industry standards. The Council 
expressed concern regarding whether or not the proposals include labor warranty. 
Mayor Wingfield recommended approving McPhillips Bros. Roofing for their 
competitive rate.  
 
Councilmember Fleck noted that the trees and widow-makers at the top of the roof 
should be examined as they will affect the life expectancy of the membrane. Mayor 
Wingfield reported that STS Staffing will be in the neighborhood through the end 
of October, 2021, and will request that they trim the trees. 
 
On a motion made by Councilmember Fleck, seconded by Councilmember 
Woolstencroft, it was resolved to approve McPhillips Bros. Roofing on the 
condition that Thatcher Engineering can ensure the proposal is in 
conformance with the specs required and will monitor to ensure the roof is 
built according to specs. Thatcher Engineering is authorized to proceed with 
the next best bid if needed. All in favor; motion carried. 
 

b. Electrical Connection: The electrical connection is too low and does not meet 
building code. Mayor Wingfield obtained two preliminary estimates at a cost of less 
than $5,000.  
 
On a motion made by Mayor Wingfield, seconded by Councilmember 
McCarthy, it was resolved to authorize Thatcher Engineering to initiate and 
secure a contractor to resolve the low electrical wires with a suitable 
solution not to exceed $5,000. All in favor; motion carried. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 5 

c. West Window Replacement: The west window replacement was not included in 
the initial bid by Historic Design Consulting. The siding had not been removed at 
the time of the initial bid so it did not appear to require a replacement.  
 
On a motion made by Councilmember Fleck, seconded by Councilmember 
McCarthy, it was resolved to authorize Historic Design Consulting to provide 
a bid for the west window replacement not to exceed $1,500. All in favor; 
motion carried. 
 

d. Concrete Replacement/Repairs: Pelco Construction has provided a bid of 
$10,000 to replace the concrete pad, replace the plywood ramp with concrete 
stairs, replace the rotten retaining wall with concrete, and for remedial work on the 
right side of the door. Pelco Construction did not recommend mudjacking.  
 
On a motion made by Councilmember Woolstencroft, seconded by 
Councilmember Foster, it was resolved to approve Pelco Construction for 
the concrete replacement and repairs at a cost of $10,000. All in favor; 
motion carried. 
 

e. Tree Planting: The Council discussed removing the spruce trees and planting 
birch trees. Mayor Wingfield reported a request to plant evergreens on the east 
side of the tennis courts and pickle ball courts for sun protection.  
 
On a motion made by Councilmember Fleck, seconded by Councilmember 
Foster, it was resolved to authorize $2,500 for tree planting. All in favor; 
motion carried. 
 
ACTION – Mayor Wingfield will obtain bids for planting birch trees and evergreens. 

 
F. Council Member Reports 

 
a. Hall’s Marsh: Bud Jensen reported that the quality of water and integrity of Hall’s 

Marsh has declined. He requested that the Rice Creek Watershed District 
implement a comprehensive system approach to the maintenance of the marsh. 
The Council noted that previous meeting minutes show that Rice Creek is 
responsible for the marsh.  
 
Stan Karwoski, the Washington County Commissioner, has requested that the 
Rice Creek Watershed District review their history to determine if they’re 
responsible for the marsh, and to subsequently commit to creating a plan to 
address the problems with the system from Priebe Lake to Hall’s Marsh. The Rice 
Creek Watershed District will be provided with one month to create a plan and 
must keep Washington County appraised of their progress. Stan Karwoski 
recommended that the Council create a resolution requesting action to endorse 
that Rice Creek is responsible for Hall’s Marsh. Stan Karwoski will talk to 
Washington County staff to provide formal documents and will revisit the item at 
the November, 2021, council meeting.  
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 6 

Mayor Wingfield recommended obtaining samples of the first two feet of the 
marsh’s water for evidence of pollution. Councilmember McCarthy reported that 
Steve Thatcher, the city’s engineer, indicated he would explore water testing with 
Blue Water Science. Approval of the resolution will be included on the consent 
agenda for the next council meeting. 
 
On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by 
Councilmember Fleck, it was resolved to approve Washington County to act 
upon the Rice Creek Watershed Board to provide a permanent solution in 
two months to clean up Hall’s Marsh, followed by a resolution approval at 
the next council meeting. All in favor; motion carried. 

 
b. Bloomquist Park Trees: Refer to “Tree Planting”. 

 
c. Sewer and Water Rate Changes: The city’s financial advisor suggested a $4 

increase to the flat fee per quarter because the city is still budgeting for three 
watermain breaks a year. The flat fee increase will help recuperate costs starting 
in the December, 2021, billing period. No change was recommended for the sewer 
fund as it is in good financial standing. The Council discussed increasing the water 
rate for summer use citing the abuse of water by residents for irrigation systems.  
 
On a motion made by Mayor Wingfield, seconded by Councilmember Foster, 
it was resolved to direct Shelly Rueckert, of St. Anthony Village, to remove 
the $25 surcharge immediately starting with the next billing cycle, to 
increase the water use rates by 4% according to tiers, and to increase the 
flat rate fee for water by $4 starting in the December, 2021, billing cycle. All 
in favor; motion carried. 
 

d. Feistner Beach: Mayor Wingfield reported that an access point to the 
embankment is required. The debris also needs to be cleared in the fall of 2021, 
in order to create a usable space for boats. Mayor Wingfield is meeting with 
Washington County in late October, 2021, regarding improvements to the drainage 
ditch at East County line which will improve Birchwood Village’s access to the 
water. A newsletter will include a notice that boating will be available at Feistner 
Beach. 
 
ACTION – Mayor Wingfield will discuss the eligibility of boats at Feistner Beach 
with the Dock Association. 
 

e. Subdivision Code Amendment: The first reading of the subdivision code 
amendment and public hearing will take place at the next Council meeting. The 
subdivision code amendment will be provided to Husnik Homes for the Planning 
Commission.  
 
On a motion made by Mayor Wingfield, seconded by Councilmember Fleck, 
it was resolved to approve a public hearing for the subdivision code 
amendment presented by the city’s attorney at the next Council meeting. All 
in favor; motion carried. 
 
ACTION – The city’s attorney will work together with the city’s engineer to 
formulate a suitable subdivision code amendment. 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 7 

f. Sentence-To-Serve (STS) Buckthorn Removal: A plan to remove buckthorn and 
poisonous stumps is in progress. 
 

g. City Property Rentals: The Council discussed creating public trails and 
expressed concern regarding resistance from residents. Councilmember Fleck 
suggested that Mayor Wingfield advise residents in a newsletter that the city has 
valuable property that is being underutilized and the Council is exploring creating 
public trails. The Council discussed holding a public forum for community 
feedback. Further discussion was deferred for a workshop in early December, 
2021.  
 

h. City of Birchwood Village Motto: Mayor Wingfield reported 28 votes in favor of, 
“Birchwood: tranquil, scenic, and a little bit quirky”. 
 
On a motion made by Mayor Wingfield, seconded by Councilmember 
McCarthy, it was resolved to adopt “Birchwood: tranquil, scenic, and a little 
bit quirky” as the motto for the city of Birchwood Village. All in favor with 
the exception of Councilmember Fleck; motion carried. 
 

i. BIRCH Snow Removal Contract: The snow removal contract with BIRCH expires 
in 2021. BIRCH is being acquired; however, they are requesting a one-year 
renewal of the snow removal contract with a 3% increase in the rate. The city’s 
attorney advised that the Council should have an opportunity to ratify the 
assumption of duties by the successor company.  
 
On a motion made by Mayor Wingfield, seconded by Councilmember 
McCarthy, it was resolved to authorize a one-year renewal of the snow 
removal contract with BIRCH with a rate increase of 3% and otherwise 
subject to the same terms and conditions.   

 
ACTION – Mayor Wingfield will confirm if the same team will be working at the 
successor company after its acquisition of BIRCH. 
 
ACTION – Councilmember McCarthy will speak to BIRCH regarding more effective 
de-icing and whether service can be provided to Lakewood Lane. 
 
ACTION – The city’s attorney will review the transfer of contract between BIRCH 
and the successor company once the acquisition is complete to ensure the 
successor is subject to the same terms and conditions. A report will be provided 
at the next Council meeting. 
 

j. Meeting with Washington County: The city’s attorney reported that the 
Washington County Sheriff’s department was unwilling to issue a public nuisance 
ticket on a roadway. Mayor Wingfield suggested amending city code to require 
paved driveways. The city’s attorney advised that a sunset clause could be 
implemented on non-asphalt service driveways. The Council expressed concern 
regarding the resistance to issuing the public nuisance ticket citing they had 
authorized and directed Washington County to issue citations.  
 
ACTION – Councilmember Fleck will speak to the Washington County Sheriff and 
provide Council with a report. 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING, CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 8 

ACTION – Councilmember McCarthy will explore formulating a code for the grade 
of driveways. 

 
k. Possible Monies from the Federal Government: Mayor Wingfield reported that 

funds are available for communities experiencing flooding. A response regarding 
support to fix the lift station is pending. 

 
9.  NEXT MEETING  

 
The next Council meeting will be held at a date and time to be determined. 
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion made by Councilmember McCarthy, seconded by Councilmember 
Fleck and carried unanimously, it was agreed that there was no further business of 
the Council to transact; the meeting was closed at 9:51 p.m. by Mayor Wingfield. 

 
DISCLAIMER 
 
The above minutes should be used as a summary of the motions passed and issues 
discussed at the meeting of the members of the Birchwood Village city Council. This 
document shall not be considered to be a verbatim copy of every word spoken at the 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Mayor Mary Wingfield     City Administrator Andy Gonyou 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Date       Date 



10/12/2021Cash Control Statement

9/14/2021 To 10/12/2021For the Period : 

City of Birchwood Village

Beginning 

Balance

Name of Fund Total

Disbursed

Ending

Balance

Total 

Receipts

$125,679.17 $108,175.21 $11,853.01 $222,001.37 General Fund

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Road and Bridge

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Other Federal Programs

($4,040.00)$0.00 $0.00 ($4,040.00)Comp Plan Grant

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Tree Canopy Care

$32,525.69 $300.00 $0.00 $32,825.69 Special Rev Projects

$40.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40.00 Spec Rev - Warm House

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 REIMBURSED CONTRACTED SERVICES

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 General Debt Service (Identify) (Inactive)

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Birchwood ln Re-hab Bond

$2,119.89 $0.00 $0.00 $2,119.89 Sewer Re-hab Debt

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (401 through 499)

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 General Capital Projects

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Municipal State Aid Streets - Construction 

(Inactive)

$123,615.31 $0.00 $0.00 $123,615.31 Capital Project PW

($22,034.99)$41,995.12 $2,385.09 $17,575.04 Water

$115,277.98 $18,608.41 $2,091.17 $131,795.22 Sewer

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Transit System

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Sewer Infrastructure

$53,092.25 $0.00 $721.61 $52,370.64 Water Meter Upgrade Fees

$46,152.31 $513.00 $0.00 $46,665.31 American Rescue Act Proceeds

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Engineering Services

Total 
$624,968.47 $17,050.88 $169,591.74 $472,427.61 

Page 1 of 2Report Last Updated: 08/29/2014



Beginning 

Balance

Name of Fund Total

Disbursed

Ending

Balance

Less 

Deposits 

In Transit

Plus 

Outstanding

Checks

Total

Per Bank

Statement

Total 

Receipts

DateJonathan E Fleck City Council/Town Board

DateJustin R. McCarthy City Council/Town Board

DateKevin L Woolstencroft City Council/Town Board

DateMary  Wingfield City Council/Town Board, Mayor

DateRobert Mark Foster City Council/Town Board

Page 2 of 2Report Last Updated: 08/29/2014



10/12/2021Disbursements RegisterCity of Birchwood Village

Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

Clerk - TreasurerNPayroll- Andy Gonyou, City 

Administrator

Payroll Period Ending 09/11/2021 100-41401-100- $ 1,123.37 3155009/14/2021

$ 1,123.37 Total For Check 31550

Clerk - TreasurerNPayroll for Jackie Smith- Deputy 

Clerk

Payroll Period Ending 09/11/2021 100-41401-100- $ 421.12 3155109/14/2021

$ 421.12 Total For Check 31551

Unallocated ExpendituresNReimbursement - Microsoft 

on-line billing

Andrew Gonyou 100-49201-430- $ 13.42 31552*09/14/2021

$ 13.42 Total For Check 31552

NewsletterNAugust MailerMerrick Inc. 601-41960-350- $ 184.32 31567*09/14/2021

$ 184.32 Total For Check 31567

ParksNPortable Restrooms-Sept BillingAirFresh Industries, Inc. 100-45207-314- $ 162.50 3156809/14/2021

$ 162.50 Total For Check 31568

Sewer UtilityNContracted Services & L/S 2 and 

3 alarms - August 2021

White Bear Township 605-43190-314- $ 4,059.69 31569*09/14/2021

$ 4,059.69 Total For Check 31569

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NAnnual Hosting Fee 2021GovOffice 100-41940-320- $ 570.00 31570*09/14/2021

$ 570.00 Total For Check 31570

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NIT Services - Sept 2021City of Roseville 100-41940-320- $ 692.70 31571*09/14/2021

$ 692.70 Total For Check 31571

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NJanitorial Services - August 19, 

2021

TSE, Inc. Work Account 100-41940-314- $ 25.00 3157209/14/2021

$ 25.00 Total For Check 31572

City Training and DevelopmentNLMC Membership Dues 2021 - 

2022

League of MN Cities 100-41914-433- $ 1,103.00 31573*09/14/2021

$ 1,103.00 Total For Check 31573

Data ProcessingNAnnual Membership DuesMN Mayors Assn 100-41920-433- $ 30.00 3157409/14/2021

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 1 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

$ 30.00 Total For Check 31574

Animal ControlNAnimal Control Services - Aug 

2021

Companion Animal Control LLC 100-41916-314- $ 80.00 31575*09/14/2021

$ 80.00 Total For Check 31575

Sewer UtilityNWastewater Service - 

September 2021

Metropolitan Council - Env. Service 605-43190-217- $ 4,988.17 31576*09/14/2021

$ 4,988.17 Total For Check 31576

Tree RemovalNTree RemovalLund, John 100-43135-314- $ 3,447.18 31577*09/14/2021

$ 3,447.18 Total For Check 31577

Cable Eqpmt and ServiceNVideography - Special Council 

Mtg (8/30)

R Leeves Productions LLC 100-41950-314- $ 82.50 31578*09/14/2021

$ 82.50 Total For Check 31578

Clerk - TreasurerNFederal Taxes - Q3 2021 - 

August Payment

IRS - US Treasury 100-41401-100- $ 744.02 EFT09142021-a09/14/2021

100-41401-100- $ 307.26 EFT09142021-a

100-41401-100- $ 25.12 EFT09142021-a

Parks 100-45207-100- $ 235.49 EFT09142021-a

$ 1,311.89 Total For Check EFT09142021-a

Legal ServicesNAttorney Services - August 2021H.A. Kantrud, P.A. 100-41601-300- $ 1,500.00 3154709/15/2021

$ 1,500.00 Total For Check 31547

FireNFire Srvc - August 2021City of White Bear Lake Fire 100-42201-314- $ 2,445.58 3154809/15/2021

$ 2,445.58 Total For Check 31548

Utility LocatesNbillable tickets 32Gopher State One Call 605-42805-314- $ 43.20 31553*09/15/2021

$ 43.20 Total For Check 31553

Ordinances and ProceedingsNLegal Notice Publications - 

July/August 2021

Press Publications 100-41130-351- $ 113.50 31554*09/15/2021

$ 113.50 Total For Check 31554

Water UtilityNStandby- Sept 2021, repairs and 

locates

Manship Plumbing & Heating Inc 601-43180-314- $ 420.00 31555*09/15/2021

601-43180-314- $ 150.00 31555*

601-43180-314- $ 600.00 31555*

$ 1,170.00 Total For Check 31555

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 2 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NJanitorial Services - August 2021TSE, Inc. Work Account 100-41940-314- $ 50.00 31556*09/15/2021

$ 50.00 Total For Check 31556

ParksNChipper 8/18/2021White Bear Rental 100-45207-400- $ 238.70 3155709/15/2021

$ 238.70 Total For Check 31557

Financial AdministrationNQ3 Utility Billing 2021City of St. Anthony Village 601-41501-305- $ 1,061.09 3155809/15/2021

605-41501-305- $ 1,061.08 31558

$ 2,122.17 Total For Check 31558

Sewer UtilityNWastewater Service - August 

2021

Metropolitan Council - Env. Service 605-43190-217- $ 4,988.17 3155909/15/2021

$ 4,988.17 Total For Check 31559

ParksNChipper 8/25/2021White Bear Rental 100-45207-400- $ 239.78 3156009/15/2021

$ 239.78 Total For Check 31560

RecycleNRecycling for Service Period: Jul- 

Aug 2021

Tennis Sanitation, LLC 100-43300-314- $ 2,392.00 3156109/15/2021

$ 2,392.00 Total For Check 31561

Water UtilityNWater Meter TownerDakota Supply Group 100-43180-380- $ 11,297.00 31562*09/15/2021

$ 11,297.00 Total For Check 31562

ParksNWeed Killer, PVC cover and misc 

parts

Menard's - MAPLEWOOD 100-45207-400- $ 9.25 31563*09/15/2021

$ 9.25 Total For Check 31563

Office Operations SuppliesNNew Light for Office and Brush 

Killer

MENARD'S - OAKDALE 100-41911-400- $ 99.98 31564*09/15/2021

Parks 100-45207-400- $ 18.97 31564*

$ 118.95 Total For Check 31564

Cable Eqpmt and ServiceNVideography - City Council 

Meetings, August

R Leeves Productions LLC 100-41950-314- $ 93.04 31565*09/15/2021

100-41950-314- $ 82.50 31565*

$ 175.54 Total For Check 31565

Sewer UtilityNCover for sewer accessCore & Main 605-43190-220- $ 237.12 3156609/15/2021

$ 237.12 Total For Check 31566

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 3 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

Clerk - TreasurerNRetirement funds- City 

Administrator- Aug 29-Sept 11

PERA 100-41401-121- $ 211.74 EFT09152021a09/15/2021

$ 211.74 Total For Check EFT09152021a

ParksNRetirement funds- City 

Administrator

PERA 100-45207-121- $ 211.74 EFT09152021-A*09/15/2021

$ 211.74 Total For Check EFT09152021-A

Water UtilityNElectronic for Tower @ 210 

Birchwood Ave, 6/17-7/19

Xcel Energy 601-43180-381- $ 12.62 08162021a*09/16/2021

$ 12.62 Total For Check 08162021a

Sewer UtilityNGas Service @ 200 Wildwood 

Ave, 6/17-7/19

Xcel Energy 605-43190-383- $ 27.86 08162021b*09/16/2021

$ 27.86 Total For Check 08162021b

Sewer UtilityNGas Service @ 407 Lake Ave, 

6/17-7/19

Xcel Energy 605-43190-383- $ 26.78 08162021c*09/16/2021

$ 26.78 Total For Check 08162021c

Street LightingNStreet Lighting- 07/3-08/02Xcel Energy 100-43160-380- $ 1,267.80 08302021a*09/16/2021

$ 1,267.80 Total For Check 08302021a

Water UtilityNElectricity for 210 Birchwood 

Tower, 7/19-8/17

Xcel Energy 601-43180-381- $ 12.62 09152021a*09/16/2021

$ 12.62 Total For Check 09152021a

Sewer UtilityNGas Service 407 Lake Ave Lift 

Station- 07/19-8/17

Xcel Energy 605-43190-383- $ 26.78 09152021b*09/16/2021

$ 26.78 Total For Check 09152021b

Sewer UtilityNGas Service 200 Wildwood- 

07/19-8/17

Xcel Energy 605-43190-383- $ 29.17 09152021c*09/16/2021

$ 29.17 Total For Check 09152021c

RecreationNMusic in the Park - 08/29/2021 

(For Band that Replaced Original 

Artist)

Dale Dahlquist 210-45101-440- $ 300.00 31579*09/18/2021

$ 300.00 Total For Check 31579

Building Inspections AdministrationNBuilding Permit Surcharge - Q2 

2021

MN Department of Labor and 

Industry

100-42401-437- $ 235.40 EFT09202021-A*09/20/2021

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 4 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

$ 235.40 Total For Check EFT09202021-A

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NJanitorial Services - 9/2/ 2021TSE, Inc. Work Account 100-41940-314- $ 25.00 31580*09/22/2021

$ 25.00 Total For Check 31580

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NReimbursement - Stamps and 

light bulbs

Wingfield, Mary 100-41940-220- $ 25.00 3158109/22/2021

Postage/Postal Permits 605-41430-810- $ 792.00 31581

$ 817.00 Total For Check 31581

Sewer UtilityNReplace water meterCore & Main 605-43190-220- $ 71.48 31582*09/22/2021

$ 71.48 Total For Check 31582

ParksNChipper 09/15/2021White Bear Rental 100-45207-400- $ 354.22 31583*09/22/2021

$ 354.22 Total For Check 31583

Office Operations SuppliesNPrinter Maintenance - 

09/09-10/08/21

Toshiba Business Solutions 100-41911-314- $ 10.62 31584*09/22/2021

$ 10.62 Total For Check 31584

ParksNMisc maintenance itemsMenard's - MAPLEWOOD 100-45207-400- $ 9.25 31585*09/22/2021

$ 9.25 Total For Check 31585

ParksNMaintenance SuppliesMenards - Oakdale 100-45207-400- $ 47.34 31586*09/22/2021

$ 47.34 Total For Check 31586

Cable Eqpmt and ServiceNVideography - Council Mtg 

(9/14)

R Leeves Productions LLC 100-41950-314- $ 109.54 31587*09/22/2021

$ 109.54 Total For Check 31587

Ordinances and ProceedingsNLegal Notice Publications - 

September 2021

Press Publications 100-41130-351- $ 54.51 31588*09/22/2021

100-41130-351- $ 54.51 31588*

100-41130-351- $ 54.51 31588*

100-41130-351- $ 4.60 31588*

$ 168.13 Total For Check 31588

Unallocated ExpendituresNLaptop connection and mobile 

hotspot

AT & T Mobility 100-49201-430- $ 51.04 EFT 09222021A*09/22/2021

$ 51.04 Total For Check EFT 09222021A

Clerk - TreasurerNAdministrator- Andy GonyouPayroll Period Ending 09/29/2021 100-41401-100- $ 1,217.25 3158909/29/2021

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 5 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

$ 1,217.25 Total For Check 31589

Clerk - TreasurerNDeputy Clerk- Jackie SmithPayroll Period Ending 09/29/2021 100-41401-100- $ 502.36 3159009/29/2021

$ 502.36 Total For Check 31590

Unallocated ExpendituresNHall Concrete WorkPelco Construction, LLC 100-49201-430- $ 10,225.00 31591*09/30/2021

$ 10,225.00 Total For Check 31591

Unallocated ExpendituresNHall Building restorationPelco Construction, LLC 100-49201-430- $ 28,355.00 31592*09/30/2021

$ 28,355.00 Total For Check 31592

Water UtilityNWater Meter Tower Collector 

set

Dakota Supply Group 100-43180-380- $ 6,500.00 31593*09/30/2021

$ 6,500.00 Total For Check 31593

Planning and ZoningNCity Planner Services - July-SeptDouglas Danks Design Associates 

Inc

100-41910-300- $ 1,200.00 31594*09/30/2021

$ 1,200.00 Total For Check 31594

Clerk - TreasurerNRetirement funds- City 

Administrator- Sept 12-Sept 25

PERA 100-41401-121- $ 231.00 EFT09302021A*09/30/2021

$ 231.00 Total For Check EFT09302021A

CARES Expenses (for Enterprise 

Funds)

NWater Meter TowerStructural Tower Services 601-49295-314- $ 18,230.00 31595*10/01/2021

$ 18,230.00 Total For Check 31595

Engineer ServiceNCity Engineer - Permit Work and 

Structural Meter Tower

Thatcher Engineering, Inc 100-41650-300- $ 6,247.50 31596*10/01/2021

100-41650-300- $ 1,445.00 31596*

100-41650-300- $ 2,252.50 31596*

100-41650-300- $ 4,292.50 31596*

100-41650-300- $ 1,827.50 31596*

CARES Expenses (for Enterprise 

Funds)

100-49295-430- $ 4,595.38 31596*

$ 20,660.38 Total For Check 31596

ParksNJim Rydeen- Maintenance 

Payroll

Payroll Period Ending 10/01/2021 100-45207-100- $ 1,148.92 3159710/01/2021

$ 1,148.92 Total For Check 31597

Street LightingNStreet Lighting- 8/3-9/2Xcel Energy 100-43160-380- $ 1,278.70 EFT100121-A*10/01/2021

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 6 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

$ 1,278.70 Total For Check EFT100121-A

ParksNRetirement funds- Maintenance 

Month of September

PERA 100-45207-121- $ 196.00 EFT10042021A*10/04/2021

$ 196.00 Total For Check EFT10042021A

Water UtilityNRefund of St Anthony Billing due 

to error

Angela Cosgrove 601-43180-430- $ 164.84 31598*10/07/2021

$ 164.84 Total For Check 31598

FireNFire Services- Aug 2021City of White Bear Lake 100-42201-314- $ 2,445.58 3159910/07/2021

$ 2,445.58 Total For Check 31599

Legal ServicesNAttorney Services - Sept 2021H.A. Kantrud, P.A. 100-41601-300- $ 1,500.00 3160010/07/2021

$ 1,500.00 Total For Check 31600

Water UtilityNQuarterly Water billing - 

6/14-9/21/21

City of White Bear Lake 601-43180-314- $ 19,839.63 3160110/07/2021

$ 19,839.63 Total For Check 31601

General Government Buildings and 

Plant

NIT Services - Oct 2021City of Roseville 100-41940-320- $ 692.70 31602*10/07/2021

$ 692.70 Total For Check 31602

Water UtilityNStandby- Oct 2021, sample 

testing, water quality testing 

and locates

Manship Plumbing & Heating Inc 601-43180-314- $ 600.00 3160310/07/2021

601-43180-314- $ 480.00 31603

601-43180-314- $ 120.00 31603

601-43180-314- $ 120.00 31603

$ 1,320.00 Total For Check 31603

CARES Expenses (for Enterprise 

Funds)

NMater Meter Tower and 

Emergency Generator Pad

American Engineering Testing, Inc. 625-49295-430-9 $ 513.00 31604*10/07/2021

$ 513.00 Total For Check 31604

Ordinances and ProceedingsNLegal Notice Publications - 

September 2021

Press Publications 100-41130-351- $ 81.77 31605*10/07/2021

100-41130-351- $ 54.51 31605*

100-41130-351- $ 54.51 31605*

$ 190.79 Total For Check 31605

Clerk - TreasurerNAssistant Treasurer- Mary CahillPayroll Period Ending 09/30/2021 100-41401-100- $ 160.51 3160810/11/2021

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 7 of 8



Description Account Name TotalF-A-O-PVoidDate Vendor Check #

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

All FundsFund Name: 

$ 160.51 Total For Check 31608

Sewer UtilityNContracted Services  - Sept 

2021, Lift #3 repair

White Bear Township 605-43190-314- $ 2,256.91 31609*10/11/2021

$ 2,256.91 Total For Check 31609

Clerk - TreasurerNMN State Tax eFiling - Q3 2021MN Department of Revenue 100-41401-115- $ 1,060.42 EFT10122021A*10/12/2021

Building Inspections Administration 100-42401-437- $ 240.80 EFT10122021A*

$ 1,301.22 Total For Check EFT10122021A

Total For Selected Checks $ 169,591.74 

Report Version: 03/31/2015 Page 8 of 8



10/12/2021Receipts RegisterCity of Birchwood Village

F-A-PReceipt # Deposit ID VoidRemitter Description TotalAccount NameDate

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

Fund Name: All Funds

Carter Custom 

Construction and Fire

Building Permit and Escrow- 

2021-72

(09/20/2021) - Building Permits $ 539.81 100-32211-N171735217*09/20/2021

Escrow Deposits $ 3,000.00 100-36245-8

$ 3,539.81 

Michels Homes Building Permit and Escrow- 

2021-24

(09/21/2021) - Building Permits $ 306.86 100-32211-N171735218*09/21/2021

Escrow Deposits $ 3,000.00 100-36245-8

$ 3,306.86 

WS & D Permit Service, 

Inc.

Building Permit (09/22/2021) - Building Permits $ 273.19 100-32211-N171735201*09/22/2021

$ 273.19 

Bear Roofing & Exteriors Building Permit (09/22/2021) - Building Permits $ 200.75 100-32211-N171735202*09/22/2021

$ 200.75 

Mark Schaffhausen Zoning permit Z0830 (09/29/2021) - Zoning Permits $ 280.00 100-32214-N171735206*09/29/2021

$ 280.00 

Nadja Gale Building permit # 2021-66 (09/29/2021) - Building Permits $ 1,043.75 100-32211-N171735207*09/29/2021

$ 1,043.75 

Nadja Gale Building Permit 2021-66 (09/29/2021) - Building Permits $ 843.93 100-32211-N171735208*09/29/2021

$ 843.93 

Walker Roofing Building Permit # 2021-73 (09/29/2021) - Building Permits $ 156.94 100-32211-N171735209*09/29/2021

$ 156.94 

Anthony Nickolaus Zoning permit (09/29/2021) - Zoning Permits $ 600.00 100-32214-N171735210*09/29/2021

$ 600.00 

Residents - via St Anthony 

Village

Utility Billing 08/05/2021 (09/30/2021) - Miscellaneous $ 25.00 100-36140-N17173521209/30/2021

Water Fee $ 2,314.64 601-34110-

Penalty - Late Water/Sewer $ 1.76 601-34160-

Page 1 of 2Report Version: 03/31/2015



F-A-PReceipt # Deposit ID VoidRemitter Description TotalAccount NameDate

09/14/2021 To 10/12/2021Date Range: 

Fund Name: All Funds

State and Misc fees $ 68.69 601-34170-

Penalty - Late Water/Sewer $ 2.26 605-34160-

Sewer Fee $ 2,088.91 605-34190-

Miscellaneous $ 721.61 620-36140-6

$ 5,222.87 

Michael conway Building Permit # 2021-75 (09/30/2021) - Building Permits $ 157.00 100-32211-N171735215*09/30/2021

$ 157.00 

Michael Conway Building Permit- 2021-74 (09/30/2021) - Building Permits $ 157.25 100-32211-N171735216*09/30/2021

$ 157.25 

Hoffman-Weber 

Construction

Bldg Permit 2021-77 (10/08/2021) - Building Permits $ 668.53 100-32211-N171735213*10/08/2021

$ 668.53 

Kyle Hunt and Partners Variance fee- 210928 (10/08/2021) - Building Permits $ 600.00 100-32211-N171735214*10/08/2021

$ 600.00 

Total for Selected Receipts $ 17,050.88 

Page 2 of 2Report Version: 03/31/2015



City of Birchwood Village Interim Financial Report By Object Code (YTD) 10/12/2021

As on 10/12/2021

Special Rev Projects

Budget Actual Variance

Receipts:

 16,500.00  16,500.00  0.00 Dock/Lift Permit Fee

 16,500.00  16,500.00  0.00 Total Acct 322

Total Revenues  0.00  16,500.00  16,500.00 

Other Financing Sources:

Total Other Financing Sources  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Disbursements:

Recreation

(3,200.00) 3,200.00  0.00 Community Events

(3,200.00) 3,200.00  0.00 Total Acct 451

Total Disbursements  0.00  3,200.00 (3,200.00)

Other Financing Uses:

Transfer To Governmental Fund

(5,000.00) 5,000.00  0.00 Interfund Transfers

(5,000.00) 5,000.00  0.00 Total Acct 493

Total Other Financing Uses  0.00  5,000.00 (5,000.00)

 24,225.69 Beginning Cash Balance

 16,500.00 Total Receipts and Other Financing Sources

 8,200.00 Total Disbursements and Other Financing Uses

 32,525.69 Cash Balance as of 10/12/2021

Page 1 of 1Report Version: 12/18/2015



City of Birchwood Village Interim Financial Report By Object Code (YTD) 10/12/2021

As on 10/12/2021

Capital Project PW

Budget Actual Variance

Receipts:

Total Revenues  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Other Financing Sources:

Total Other Financing Sources  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Disbursements:

Total Disbursements  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Other Financing Uses:

Total Other Financing Uses  0.00  0.00  0.00 

 123,615.31 Beginning Cash Balance

 0.00 Total Receipts and Other Financing Sources

 0.00 Total Disbursements and Other Financing Uses

 123,615.31 Cash Balance as of 10/12/2021

Page 1 of 1Report Version: 12/18/2015



City of Birchwood Village Interim Financial Report By Object Code (YTD) 10/12/2021

As on 10/12/2021

Water

Budget Actual Variance

Receipts:

 64,068.36  64,068.36  0.00 Water Fee

 674.52  674.52  0.00 Penalty - Late Water/Sewer

 2,286.02  2,286.02  0.00 State and Misc fees

 67,028.90  67,028.90  0.00 Total Acct 341

 468.51  468.51  0.00 Delinquent Water/Sewer Fees

 5,790.79  5,790.79  0.00 Miscellaneous

 6,259.30  6,259.30  0.00 Total Acct 361

Total Revenues  0.00  73,288.20  73,288.20 

Other Financing Sources:

Total Other Financing Sources  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Disbursements:

Postage/Postal Permits

(231.00) 231.00  0.00 Refunds and Reimbursements

(231.00) 231.00  0.00 Total Acct 414

Financial Administration

(1,061.09) 1,061.09  0.00 Professional Services: Medical and Dental Fees

(6,213.30) 6,213.30  0.00 Contracted Services

(7,274.39) 7,274.39  0.00 Total Acct 415

Office Operations Supplies

(243.26) 243.26  0.00 Operating Supplies (211 through 219)

Newsletter

(683.19) 683.19  0.00 Printing and Binding (351 through 359)

(926.45) 926.45  0.00 Total Acct 419

Water Utility

(438.84) 438.84  0.00 Repair and Maintenance Supplies (221 through 229)

(70,230.06) 70,230.06  0.00 Contracted Services

(115.06) 115.06  0.00 Utility Services: Electric Utilities

(164.84) 164.84  0.00 Miscellaneous (431 through 499)

(2,580.00) 2,580.00  0.00 Fees

Wtr/Swr Emergency

(800.00) 800.00  0.00 Repair and Maintenance Supplies (221 through 229)

(1,041.50) 1,041.50  0.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (301 through 319)

(19,983.56) 19,983.56  0.00 Contracted Services

(95,353.86) 95,353.86  0.00 Total Acct 431

MISCELLANEOUS

(8,181.90) 8,181.90  0.00 Miscellaneous (431 through 499)

(8,181.90) 8,181.90  0.00 Total Acct 490

CARES Expenses (for Enterprise Funds)

(18,230.00) 18,230.00  0.00 Contracted Services

(18,230.00) 18,230.00  0.00 Total Acct 492

Total Disbursements  0.00  130,197.60 (130,197.60)

Other Financing Uses:

Transfer To Enterprise Fund

(35,000.00) 35,000.00  0.00 Interfund Transfers

(35,000.00) 35,000.00  0.00 Total Acct 493

Total Other Financing Uses  0.00  35,000.00 (35,000.00)

Page 1 of 2Report Version: 12/18/2015



City of Birchwood Village Interim Financial Report By Object Code (YTD) 10/12/2021

As on 10/12/2021

Water

Budget Actual Variance

 69,874.41 Beginning Cash Balance

 73,288.20 Total Receipts and Other Financing Sources

 165,197.60 Total Disbursements and Other Financing Uses

(22,034.99)Cash Balance as of 10/12/2021

Page 2 of 2Report Version: 12/18/2015



City of Birchwood Village Interim Financial Report By Object Code (YTD) 10/12/2021

As on 10/12/2021

Sewer

Budget Actual Variance

Receipts:

 542.10  542.10  0.00 Penalty - Late Water/Sewer

 77,041.78  77,041.78  0.00 Sewer Fee

 77,583.88  77,583.88  0.00 Total Acct 341

 468.51  468.51  0.00 Delinquent Water/Sewer Fees

 468.51  468.51  0.00 Total Acct 361

 10,821.14  10,821.14  0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

 10,821.14  10,821.14  0.00 Total Acct 362

Total Revenues  0.00  88,873.53  88,873.53 

Other Financing Sources:

Total Other Financing Sources  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Disbursements:

Postage/Postal Permits

(1,826.00) 1,826.00  0.00 Refunds and Reimbursements

(1,826.00) 1,826.00  0.00 Total Acct 414

Financial Administration

(1,061.08) 1,061.08  0.00 Professional Services: Medical and Dental Fees

(1,061.08) 1,061.08  0.00 Total Acct 415

Office Operations Supplies

(243.26) 243.26  0.00 Operating Supplies (211 through 219)

(243.26) 243.26  0.00 Total Acct 419

Utility Locates

(325.40) 325.40  0.00 Contracted Services

(325.40) 325.40  0.00 Total Acct 428

Sewer Utility

(49,881.70) 49,881.70  0.00 Sewer - Wastewater Charge

(308.60) 308.60  0.00 Repair and Maintenance Supplies (221 through 229)

(30,951.54) 30,951.54  0.00 Contracted Services

(5,602.76) 5,602.76  0.00 Utility Services (381 through 389)

(499.57) 499.57  0.00 Utility Services: Gas Utilities

(87,244.17) 87,244.17  0.00 Total Acct 431

Unallocated Expenditures

(13,100.00) 13,100.00  0.00 Miscellaneous (431 through 499)

(13,100.00) 13,100.00  0.00 Total Acct 492

Total Disbursements  0.00  103,799.91 (103,799.91)

Other Financing Uses:

Total Other Financing Uses  0.00  0.00  0.00 

 130,204.36 Beginning Cash Balance

 88,873.53 Total Receipts and Other Financing Sources

 103,799.91 Total Disbursements and Other Financing Uses

 115,277.98 Cash Balance as of 10/12/2021

Page 1 of 1Report Version: 12/18/2015





Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE 2021-10-01 
 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBDIVISION OF LAND  

IN THE CITY ZONING CODE 
 
The City Council of the City of Birchwood Village hereby ordains that Chapter 308 (Subdivision of 
Land) of the Municipal Code of the City of Birchwood Village is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
SECTION 308.  SUBDIVISION OF LAND 
 
308.121 LOT SPLIT WITH NO UTILITY EXTENSIONS EXEMPT FROM MOST 
REQUIREMENTS. The application of this subdivision chapter is waived when the developer 
proposes a lot split where: 

1. All the proposed lots meet the front foot requirement under section 302.010 (2) on an 
existing, developed street or roadway, and 

2. No city utilities (sanitary sewer and water and storm sewer) are extended in the city right of 
way to serve the lot split, and 

3. Stormwater will be managed on each lot by the property owner, and  
4. Stormwater under this exception shall meet the requirements of the City Code, and. 
5. Provided when any such new lots exceed 24,000 square feet and are potentially 

subsequently subdividable, the developer shall enter into an Agreement with the City, and 
record with the Washington County Recorder, a restrictive covenant preventing further 
subdivision of such lot(s) in perpetuity. 

Subd. 1. DATA REQUIRED. The following are data requirements to qualify for a lot split with no 
utility extensions:  
 

1. Boundary and topographic survey that shows the following: 
a. Boundaries of the existing parcel(s) to be altered with dimensions and 

area. 
b. The boundary and topographic survey shall be prepared and signed by a 

licensed land surveyor. 
 

2. If required by the City Engineer, a resource inventory that shows the following: 
 

a. Soils report indicating soil type locations and identification of soil type 
characteristics such as hydric soils, agricultural capability, depth to bedrock, 
depth to groundwater, and hydraulic conductivity. The soils report shall have 
adequate soils information to determine suitability for building and on-site 
mitigation and handling of surface water and groundwater capabilities for 
every lot from the most current existing sources and from field investigations 
such as soil boring, percolation tests, or other methods. 

 



Page 2 
 

3. Proposed lots that show the following: 
a. Proposed lot lines, dimensions, and the gross and buildable acreage of 

each lot; when lots are located on a curve in a road or cul-de-sac, the lot 
width at the building setback line shall be shown; proposed lot and block 
numbers. 

 
4. A preliminary grading, drainage and erosion control plan that shows the 

following: 
a. Existing contour elevations (existing grade elevations) at one foot (1') 

intervals shown as dashed lines for the subject property. 
b. Proposed contour elevations (proposed grade elevations) at one foot (1') 

intervals shown as solid lines. 
c. Proposed plan for surface water management, ponding, drainage and 

flood control, including the normal water level and high water level of 
all ponds and watercourses including those which drain beyond the 
boundaries of the subdivision. 

d. If the subject property is within or adjacent to a 100-year floodplain, 
flood elevation and locations shall be shown. 

e. The preliminary grading, drainage and erosion control plan shall be 
prepared and signed by a licensed professional engineer. 

 
5. If required by the City Engineer, a hydrological study and written report that 

includes the following: 
a. The installation of a minimum of three (3) temporary monitoring wells 
(TMW) to document existing groundwater elevation and groundwater 
flow direction. 
 

Subd. 2. REVIEW AND APPROVAL. If all the required submissions are made under 
Subdivision 1, the procedure for approval of exemption shall follow the same review process 
as if for a final plat under Section 308.050 of this Code. 

 
 

 
 



 
 
 Associates 
 

  142 Wildwood Avenue 
  Birchwood, MN 55110 
  Phone  612-306-1096 

 
September 22, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Andy Gonyou, City Administrator 
City of Birchwood Village 
207 Birchwood Village 
Birchwood Village, MN  55110 

 
 
Project:  339 Wildwood Avenue – Revised Variance, Zoning Permit and 
Conditional Use Permit Applications 2021 
   

 
Mr. Gonyou:  
 
Acting on behalf of the City of Birchwood Village as their Permit Reviewer, I have 
reviewed the revised Zoning Permit, Conditional Use Permit and Petition for 
Variance Applications submitted for landscape/sitework, shoreline rock riprap 
and retaining wall construction at 339 Wildwood Avenue.  I have organized my 
report and comments based on the following sequence of proposed work: 
 
1. City Code Section 302.020 – Structure Location Requirements Part 4.b 

Retaining Wall Setbacks:  The ordinance states lot line setback requirements 
shall not apply to retaining walls except that the ordinary high water setback 
requirements shall apply to retaining walls.  The proposed retaining wall 
location submitted on the Survey Basemap and Proposed Plan document is 
within the required 50’-0” setback, and will require Planning Commission 
review of the Petition for Variance Application submitted.  I will defer to the 
Planning Commission on the issue of whether or not Practical Difficulties 
support granting a variance.  City Code Section 302.055 – Land Disturbance 
Activity Standards Part 2.a.4 states that no grading or filling shall be 
permitted within 20’-0” of the ordinary high water level of any lake, pond or 
wetland.  The retaining wall location and associated land disturbance as 
proposed have been revised to locate the work outside the 20’-0” setback 
from the ordinary high water level.  I find the proposed retaining wall location 
and associated land disturbance comply with the City Code Section 302.055 
– Land Disturbance Activity Standards Part 2.a.4. 

 
2. City Code Section 302.055 – Land Disturbance Activity Standards Part 2.a.6 

states “Placement of natural rock riprap, including grading of the associated 
shoreline and placement of a filter fabric, is permitted if the finished slope 
does not exceed (3) three feet horizontal to (1) one foot vertical, the landward  
extent of the riprap is within (10) ten feet of the ordinary high water level, and 
the height of the riprap above the ordinary high water level does not exceed 

 Douglas Danks 



(3) feet.”  I observe that the revised Survey Basemap and Proposed Plan and 
Project Description documents submitted with the applications indicate the 
height and landward extent are within the City Code requirement.  I find the 
Zoning Permit Application is complete and the proposed shoreline rock riprap 
complies with the City Code, and recommend approval of a Zoning Permit for 
this work. 
 

3. City Code Section 302.070 – City Fence Ordinance Part 5 Retaining Walls 
states solid walls in excess of 4’-0” high shall be prohibited unless they are 
part of a building.  The proposed glacial boulder retaining wall on the Survey 
Basemap and Proposed Plan document is indicated to be 5’-0” high, and will 
require the Petition for Variance Application submitted.  For retaining walls 
over the 4’-0” height limit the retaining wall shall be engineered with signed 
and stamped documents for the design and construction prepared and 
submitted by a licensed Professional Engineer.  I will defer to the Planning 
Commission on the issue of whether or not Practical Difficulties support 
granting a variance.  The applicant indicates the required engineering will be 
submitted if the Petition for Variance Application is approved.  With this 
requirement deferred until then, I find the Petition for Variance Application is 
complete. 

 
4. City Code Section 301.070 – Conditional Uses Part 1 states a Conditional 

Use Permit shall be required for any land disturbance activity where the 
slope is toward a lake, pond, wetland or watercourse leading to such waters 
and the alteration is closer to such waters than the structure setback 
requirement.  The Survey Basemap and Proposed Plan document submitted 
with the applications indicates land disturbance on the slope leading to the 
lake within 50’-0” from the ordinary high water level, and will require Planning 
Commission review of the Conditional Use Permit submitted.  I find the 
Conditional Use Permit Application and supporting documents are complete. 

 
 

Please let me know if either you or the applicant have questions regarding my 
permit review, or if additional clarification is required. 
 
Regards, 

 
Doug Danks 



CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
MEMORANDUM 

Updated September 22, 2021 
 

 
TO:  Birchwood Village Planning Commission 

FROM: Thatcher Engineering, Inc. 

DATE:  September 22, 2021 

APPLICANT:   

Southview Design, Landscape Contractor, 2383 Pilot Knob Rd, St Paul, MN 55120. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S):   Luke and Courtney Wippler 

LOCATION:   339 Wildwood Avenue, Birchwood Village, MN 55110 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
Variance request #1:  
The Applicant requested a variance from City Code 302.020 – minimum setback requirements 
retaining wall. However, Thatcher Engineering. Inc. (TEI) understands that this variance is not 
needed now because the Applicant changed their plan so the retaining wall location meets code 
requirements. The retaining wall will be greater than 20 feet from the Ordinary High Water Level 
(OHWL).  
 
A variance is still required for the glacial boulder retaining wall since it is within the required 50 
foot setback for a structure from the OHWL.  The 20'-0" setback noted above is for land 
disturbance activities. 
 
Variance request #2:  
The Applicant is requesting a variance from City Code 302.050 – impervious surface 
requirements. 
 
Variance request #3:  
The Applicant requested a variance from City Code 302.055 – grading within 20 feet of the 
OHWL of White Bear Lake. However, TEI understands that this variance is not needed now 
because the Applicant changed their plan so the grading meets code requirements. No grading 
will occur within 20 feet of the OHWL of White Bear Lake except for the shoreline rock rip rap. 
This grading does not need a variance because it meets the requirements of City Code 
302.055.2.a.6. It will be approved as part of a Zoning Permit for the shoreline rock riprap. 



2 
 

 
Variance request #4:  
The Applicant is requesting a variance from City Code 302.070 – retaining walls in excess of 4 
feet. 
 
Certificate of Survey:  
 
The Certificate of Survey (COS) prepared by E. G. Rud & Sons, Inc. dated September 4, 2019 
shows the following: 

1. A proposed 30 foot by 30 foot addition to the existing house. 
2. The existing deck to the guest house/garage to be removed. 

 
Survey Base Map and Proposed Plan:  
 
The Survey Base Map and Proposed Plan (Plan) prepared by Southview Design dated 
September 20, 2021 shows the following: 

1. A proposed 30 foot by 30 foot addition to the existing house.  
2. The existing deck to the guest house/garage to be removed. 

 
TEI Requested Information and Applicant Replied: 
 
Thatcher Engineering, Inc. (TEI) requested that the applicant do the following (and the 
Applicant’s reply): 

1. Clarify whether or not the addition to the existing house and removal of the existing 
deck are included in the building permit application submitted to the city with the 
variance application.  

a. An email from Alyson Landmark of Southview Design dated September 17, 2021 
states that the addition has been completed previously and the deck will be 
permitted for separately by the construction contractor. 

2. Provide updated impervious surface calculations based on the lot area to the OHWL. 
a. Updated impervious surface calculations based on the lot area to the OHWL 

were provided on the Plan prepared by Southview Design dated September 20, 
2021. 

 
The Applicant is making the requests because of the following: 

1. The property owner has safety concerns as they relate to both the slope of the hill and 
the water line.  

2. The existing 125 lineal feet of mowed-grass shoreline is at the bottom of a nearly 2:1 
slope that rises 14 feet from the water’s edge.  

 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Variance request #1: Doug Danks, City Planner, will review this request. 
 
Variance request #2:  
 
City Code 302.050 IMPERVIOUS SURFACES states: “1. Limitation. Impervious surface 
coverage of lots shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the lot area unless the applicant 
satisfies the following conditions to obtain a variance:  
 

a. The applicant shall submit a stormwater management plan for the site that analyzes 
the proposed development including the area(s) of impervious surfaces, direction of 
runoff, proposed best management practices to manage runoff, and stormwater 
retention that the best management practices will achieve. 
 

b. The stormwater management plan shall include structures and/or best management 
practices for the mitigation of stormwater impacts on receiving waters in compliance 
with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan, or as approved by the City 
Engineer, so that the site design includes stormwater management practices that 
control the stormwater runoff volumes, and the post-construction runoff volume shall 
be retained on site for 1.1 inches of runoff from impervious surfaces. 

 
c. The applicant shall utilize the most recent version of the Minnesota MIDS (Minimum 

Impact Design Standards) Calculator (available on the Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency’s website), the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s National Stormwater 
Calculator, or another similar stormwater design calculator approved by the city to 
complete the plan and show that the proposed stormwater management practices 
meet the required infiltration standard. The applicant shall submit the calculator 
results to the City with the stormwater management plan.  

 
d. The applicant shall provide documentation that the proposed stormwater 

management methods meet the required standard, will be designed and installed 
consistent with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan, NPDES stormwater 
standards, and the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s Minnesota Stormwater 
Manual.  

 
e. No pervious pavement system is permitted in the Shore Impact Zone. (The Shore 

Impact Zone is the land located between the ordinary high water level of a public 
water and a line parallel to it at a setback of 50 percent of the required structure 
setback. The required structure setback from the OHWL in the City of Birchwood 
Village is 50 feet, and the Shore Impact Zone is 25 feet.) 

 



4 
 

f. Site design shall comply with the City’s zoning code 302.055, and shall minimize 
changes in ground cover, loss of natural vegetation, and grade change as much as 
possible.  

 
g. The base of installed infiltration structures or practices must be a minimum of three 

(3) feet above the established ground water table or the Ordinary High Water Level 
of White Bear Lake, whichever is higher. 

 
h. The stormwater management practices shall be designed in accord with the 

Minnesota Stormwater Manual, American Concrete Pavement Association design 
criteria, Center for Watershed Protection, Stormwater BMP Design Supplement for 
Cold Climates, or other design guidance provided by the City. 

 
i. The stormwater management plan shall include the applicant’s description of how 

the practices shall be maintained to function as designed for the long-term. The City 
may inspect the installation of the stormwater management system at the site. 

 
j. The applicant shall include the maintenance plan and a maintenance schedule for 

the approved stormwater management practices with the required permit application. 
 
k. The variance shall not be valid unless the applicant properly records the variance at 

the property records at Washington County and a copy of the recording is properly 
returned to the City for verification.” 

 
Currently, this property does not conform to City Code 302.050 IMPERVIOUS SURFACES 
because the application shows that the existing impervious surface coverage is 28%. The 
proposed impervious surface coverage is 29%. 
 
On September 20, 2021, the application provided information (attached) which shows that the 
proposed work will meet the conditions for Variance Request #2. The conditions that are 
satisfied are the following: 

• Item a. 
• Item b. 
• Item c. 
• Item d. 
• Item e.  
• Item f. 
• Item g. 
• Item h. 
• Item i. 
• Item j. 
• Item k. The applicant will record the variance at Washington County, if approved. 

 



5 
 

Please note that even though there are potential physical clogging problems with infiltration, it is 
one of the most important BMP in stormwater runoff treatment. Fear of the limitations should not 
prevent well designed systems from being used. 

Variance request #3: Doug Danks, City Planner, will review this request. 
 
Variance request #4: Doug Danks, City Planner, will review this request. 
 
 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The lot area is approximately 41,574 square feet according to the Certificate of Survey (COS) 
prepared by E. G. Rud & Sons, Inc. dated September 4, 2019. The lot is approximately 140 feet 
wide and contains a single-family residence, detached garage, and separate detached guest 
house/garage. 
 
PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY 
 

1) The lot has steep slopes and topography challenges. 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTING VARIANCES 
 
Minnesota State Statute 462.357 allows for a variance to be permitted only when:   

(1) The proposed use is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the City’s 
zoning ordinance;  

(2) The variance is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan; and,  
(3) The applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning 

ordinance. 
 

Statutory criteria used to establish a practical difficulty include: 
(1) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted 

by the zoning ordinance; 
(2) The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created 

by the landowner; and 
(3) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.   

 
CITY CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTING VARIANCES 
 
Sec 304.040 of the City Code states:  
 

Variances to the strict application of the provisions of the Code may be granted, however, 
no variance may be granted that would allow any use that is prohibited within the City.  



6 
 

Conditions and safeguards may be imposed on the variances so granted. A variance shall 
not be granted unless the following criteria are met: 

 
 

SUBD. 1. 
A. Variances shall only be permitted  

i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and  
ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are 
practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  

 

SUBD. 2.  "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means that  

i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, 
or building involved. 

ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the 
applicant's action or design solution.  The applicant shall have the burden of proof 
for showing that no other reasonable design solution exists. 

iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining from 
the property. 

iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
property, or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the 
surrounding area, or in any other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the 
residents of the City. 

v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who 
do not object outnumber those who do. 

vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for the 
property exists under terms of the Zoning Code. 

ANALYSIS 
 
The lot has steep slopes and topography challenges.  
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING VARIANCE APPROVAL 
 
Variance request #2:  
 

1. The plan meets City Code requirements. 
2. This project would preserve the essential character of the locality. 

 
 

 



7 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING VARIANCE DENIAL  
 
Variance request #2: 
 

1. A primary goal of the City of Birchwood Village’s Zoning Ordinance is “to ensure that a 
non-conforming use is not intensified and that, over time, the non-conforming use will, 
where possible, be brought into conformity with the Zoning Code.” The following could 
be argued: 

a. That they are not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the 
ordinance. 

b. That the variance is not consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
c. That the Applicant for the variance has not established that there are practical 

difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  
d. The lot does not meet the requirements of City Code 302.015. 

 
CONDITIONS 
 
If approved, a requested variance may be approved subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. All application materials, maps, drawings and descriptive information submitted with this 
application shall become part of the building permit. 

2. Per City Code 304.090, the variance shall become null and void if the project has not 
been completed or utilized within one year after the date it was granted, subject to 
petition for extension by the City Council. 

3. Land alteration my not cause adverse impact upon abutting property.  
4. Applicant shall meet the requirements of City Code 301.055 which states: “For a building 

permit, the applicant must submit stormwater and erosion control plans prepared and 
signed by a licensed professional engineer. The plans must be approved by the city 
engineer and the permit holder must adhere to the approved plans. The stormwater 
management plan must detail how stormwater will be controlled to prevent damage to 
adjacent property and adverse impacts to the public stormwater drainage system.” 

5. The variance shall not be valid unless the applicant properly records the variance at the 
property records at Washington County and a copy of the recording is properly returned 
to the City for verification.” 























Current Site Conditions Within 50’ Setback: (125)lf of mowed-grass shoreline at the bottom of a nearly 
2:1 slope that rises 14’ from the water’s edge. The homeowner has safety concerns as they relate to 
both the slope of the hill and the water line. In the winter, the boat lifts and dock sections rest on the 
hillside above what has become a community-usage hockey rink. The client creates an “ice rink” on the 
lake in front of his property that other children/adults in the community use through plowed access 
provided by Birchwood Community members. He is concerned for the safety of anyone using the ice rink 
should the boat lifts/dock sections unintentionally slide down the hill. Additionally, in the summer both 
the slope and the water’s edge are difficult to mow, and the client and the client’s son has experienced 
the mower sliding down the hill and into the water. And finally, the hillside at the water’s edge is being 
eroded and in conjunction with the rip rap, the hillside needs to be addressed at the same time.   
  
Homeowner Goals Within 50’ Setback: Implement rip rap along the OHWL to minimize erosion; create 
stable space to minimize erosion, increase area of access/stability to store boat lifts and dock sections to 
minimize risk of injury to family and community members. 
  
Site Preparations Within 50’ Setback: 

 Install silt fence, including stakes every 8’, a minimum of 40’ up from shoreline along both 
shared side property lines 

 Install floating silt fence along length of lakeshore 
 Install (125)lf of glacial rip rap shore-ward of the OHWL, to conform to the natural alignment of 

the shore and so that it does not obstruct navigation or the flow of water, size range 6”-30”, free 
of debris, with 8oz. EC8 fabric with 4”-6” staples and 6’ wide 

o Excavation calculations for all rip rap: 
 Excavate 6’ w x 12” d per lf of shoreline = 27 / 6 / 1.25 = 3.6lf/cy    

 125lf/3.6 = 35 cy soil out 
 Assumes rip rap fill = same as shoreline removal = 35 cy rip rap in 
 = 0.00 cy net material out 

o Excavation calculations BETWEEN OHWL AND 927.3: 
 Excavate 1’ w x 12” d x 125’ l for rip rap 

 125lf/27 = 4.63 cy soil out    
 Assumes rip rap fill = same as shoreline removal = 4.63 cy rip rap in 
 = 0.00 cy net material out 

 Sod strip (880)sf for site repair with 1” soil removal 
 880sf x 1” d = 73.33cf/27 = 2.72 cy soil out 
 880sf x 1” d = 73.33cf/27 = 2.72 cy soil back under new sod 
 = 0.00 cy net material out 

 Excavate and haul away (50) cubic yards of soil from hillside to create stable area for boat lifts 
and dock sections with 2% slope 

o Excavation calculations for stable boat lift area: 
 Excavate 430sf x 5’ t wall 

 430 * 5 / 27 / 2 * 1.25 = 50 cy soil out    
 Install glacial boulder retaining wall, (60)lf in length, starting at grade on both ends and rising to 

5’ above grade at the highest point, size range 18”-30” boulders, 15-degree batter on wall, 12” 
minimum boulder buried, with mirafi type I40N or equal and 12” minimum free-draining 
aggregate behind boulders 

o Excavation calculations for boat lift retaining wall: 
 Excavate 24” w x 12” d per lf of retaining wall for base = 27/2/1.25 = 10.8lf/cy    



 60lf/10.8 = 5.5 cy soil out 
 5.5 * 0.7 for voids = 3.9 cy boulders in 
 = 1.6 cy net material out 

o Excavation calculations for overall site repair: 
 Sod strip (5500)sf for site repair with 1” soil removal 

 5500sf/27/12*1.25 = 21.2 cy soil out 
 5500sf/27/12*1.25 = 21.2 cy soil back in under new sod 
 = 0.00 cy net material out 

o  
 TOTAL MATERIAL OUT: (51.6) CY 
 Cover areas of disturbance along rip rap, boulder wall, and in haul road/machine access with ~1” 

topsoil and new sod 
 TOTAL PROPOSED LAND DISTURBANCE: (7,500) SF 
 EXISTING IMPERVIOUS SURFACE FOR THE PROJECT: 11,587SF = 28% 
 PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SURFACE FOR THE PROJECT: 12,132SF = 29% 

 
 
Current Site Conditions Between 50’ Setback And Back Foundation Of House: Yard is sodded from the 
50’ setback up to the treated timber retaining walls and decomposing deck steps. Rock and mulch 
surround the retaining walls. 
  
Homeowner Goals Between 50’ Setback And Back Foundation Of House: Leave sod and tree area 
between 50’ setback and timber walls as is. Replace timber retaining walls with glacial boulder retaining 
walls. Replace rock and mulch between retaining walls and house with open graded-base permeable 
flagstone patio surrounded by mulch – base soils under patio to slope to PVC pipe that directs water 
from patio to NDS dry well system. 
  
Site Preparations Between 50’ Setback And Back Foundation Of House: 

 Remove and dispose of timber walls 
 Excavate and haul away (50) cubic yards of soil from behind timber walls to install new glacial 

boulder walls and permeable patio 
 Install glacial boulder retaining walls, (90)lf in total length, starting at grade on both ends and 

dropping to 3’ maximum below patio elevation, size range 18”-30” boulders, 15-degree batter 
on wall, 12” boulder buried, with mirafi type I40N or equal and 12” minimum free-draining 
aggregate behind boulders and perforated draintile running the length of the walls 

 Install new and reinstall existing stone slab steps 
 Install NY bluestone flagstone patio over open graded base – permeable application to not 

increase impervious surface totals on property 
 Compact and slope subsoil under permeable patio to drain pipe at edge of patio – pipe to drain 

into NDS leaching dry well system 
 Cover areas of disturbance around patio, boulder walls, and in haul road/machine access with 

~1” topsoil and new sod or mulch 
 













Page 1 of 2 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive, Suite 611 
Blaine, MN 55449 
Phone: (763) 398-3070 / Fax: (763) 398-3088 
http://www.ricecreek.org 

PERMIT 21-063 
Expires on 03/02/2023 

Pursuant to the Rules and Regulations of the Rice Creek Watershed District and the District policies and standards, and based 
upon the statements and information contained in the permit application, letters, maps, and plans submitted by the applicant 
and other supporting data, all of which are made a part hereof by reference, permission is hereby granted to the permittee named 
below to conduct the activity described below. If an extension to the permit is needed, the permittee should submit a written 
request to the District at least 2 weeks prior to the expiration date. 

Name of Project 
Wippler Project 
Project Description 
Shoreline rip rap and back yard landscaping project. 
Property Location 
339 Wildwood Ave 

County 
Washington 

Municipality 
Birchwood Village 

Permittee Name 
Luke Wippler 

Permittee Contact 

Permittee Address (No. & Street, City, State, Zip code) 
339 Wildwood Ave, Birchwood Village, MN 55110 
Permittee Phone #’s  Permittee Fax Permittee Cell Phone Permittee e-mail 

Overall Surety Paid 
N/A 

Surety Paid in Cash / LOC 
 / 

Cash Paid By Letter of Credit Expiration 

In accordance with the attached plan received at the District on (date received): 
8/23/2021 

Authorized Signature: 

Patrick Hughes, Permit Coordinator/Wetland Specialist 
Date of Issuance: 08/30/2021 

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS 

1. Provide an as-built survey and computation of the floodplain fill and mitigation storage areas and volume for verification of
compliance with the approved plans.



Page 2 of 2 

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL STIPULATIONS 
1. Erosion control measures shall be in place prior to grading activities and maintained through project completion.  These 

features can include sediment logs, erosion blankets, sod, riprap, silt fence and temporary or permanent vegetation.  
2. The District Inspector may require additional erosion control features, dependent upon site condition.   
3. Refer to the MPCA “Protecting Water Quality in Urban Areas” manual at http://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/pubs/sw-

bmpmanual.html for BMPs. 
4. Please contact the District Inspector at 763-398-3070 if you have questions or to discuss site stabilization practices. 
 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1. The project shall be in accordance with the plans most recently submitted and approved by the District as part of the record 

of this project. 
2. This permit is not assignable by the Permittee, except with the written consent of the RCWD. 
3. The Permittee shall grant access to the site at all reasonable times during and after construction to authorized representatives 

of the RCWD for inspection of the work authorized hereunder. 
4. In all cases where the Permittee, by performing the work authorized by this permit, shall involve the taking, using, or damaging 

of any property rights or interests of any other person or persons, or of any publicly owned lands or improvements thereon 
or interests therein, the Permittee, before proceeding, shall obtain the written consent of all persons, agencies, or authorities 
concerned, and shall acquire all property, rights and interests needed for the work. 

5. This permit is permissive only.  No liability shall be imposed on the RCWD or any of its officers, agents, or employees, officially 
or personally, on account of the granting hereof or on account of any damage to any person or property resulting from any 
act or omission of the Permittee or any of its agents, employees, or contractors.  This permit shall not be construed as 
estopping or limiting any legal claims or right of action of any person against the Permittee, its agents, employees or 
contractors, for any damage or injury resulting from any such act or omission, or as estopping or limiting any legal claim or 
right of action of the RCWD against the Permittee, its agents, employees, or contractors for violation of or failure to comply 
with the permit or applicable provisions of law.  If during the work conditions are encountered indicating that soil or 
groundwater contaminants may be present, work must cease until the RCWD has been informed.  The RCWD may require 
additional information and may require that the stormwater management plan be amended in order to properly manage 
site stormwater in the presence of contaminants. 

6. Any stormwater management facilities approved as part of this permit shall be properly maintained in perpetuity to assure 
that they continue to function as originally designed. 

7. After vegetation is in place and erosion control features have been removed, notify the District Inspector at 763-398-3070.  
Once the Inspector verifies that site conditions comply with all permit requirements, your cash surety will be returned to the 
remitter.  

8. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PERMIT IS A VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND MAY RESULT IN 
FORFEITURE OF PERMITTEE’S SURETY AND/OR THE PERMITTEE BEING CHARGED WITH A MISDEMEANOR. 



CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Birchwood Village Planning Commission 

FROM: Thatcher Engineering, Inc. 

DATE:  September 24, 2021 

APPLICANT:  Dr. James Barthel, 469 Lake Avenue, Birchwood Village, MN 55110. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S):   Dr. James Barthel 

LOCATION:   469 Lake Avenue, Birchwood Village, MN 55110 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
Variance Request #1:  
The Applicant is requesting a variance from City Code 302.050 (IMPERVIOUS SURFACES). 
 
The Applicant is making the requests because of the following: 

1. The current house and detached garage are not adequate for aging in place.  
 
The property owners intend to do the following: 

1. Remove the current house. 
2. Install a new house with attached garage. 
3. Not remove the current detached garage. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Variance Request #1:  
 
City Code 302.050 IMPERVIOUS SURFACES states: “1. Limitation. Impervious surface 
coverage of lots shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the lot area unless the applicant 
satisfies the following conditions to obtain a variance:  
 

a. The applicant shall submit a stormwater management plan for the site that analyzes 
the proposed development including the area(s) of impervious surfaces, direction of 
runoff, proposed best management practices to manage runoff, and stormwater 
retention that the best management practices will achieve. 
 



2 
 

b. The stormwater management plan shall include structures and/or best management 
practices for the mitigation of stormwater impacts on receiving waters in compliance 
with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan, or as approved by the City 
Engineer, so that the site design includes stormwater management practices that 
control the stormwater runoff volumes, and the post-construction runoff volume shall 
be retained on site for 1.1 inches of runoff from impervious surfaces. 

 
c. The applicant shall utilize the most recent version of the Minnesota MIDS (Minimum 

Impact Design Standards) Calculator (available on the Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency’s website), the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s National Stormwater 
Calculator, or another similar stormwater design calculator approved by the city to 
complete the plan and show that the proposed stormwater management practices 
meet the required infiltration standard. The applicant shall submit the calculator 
results to the City with the stormwater management plan.  

 
d. The applicant shall provide documentation that the proposed stormwater 

management methods meet the required standard, will be designed and installed 
consistent with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan, NPDES stormwater 
standards, and the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s Minnesota Stormwater 
Manual.  

 
e. No pervious pavement system is permitted in the Shore Impact Zone. (The Shore 

Impact Zone is the land located between the ordinary high water level of a public 
water and a line parallel to it at a setback of 50 percent of the required structure 
setback. The required structure setback from the OHWL in the City of Birchwood 
Village is 50 feet, and the Shore Impact Zone is 25 feet.) 

 
f. Site design shall comply with the City’s zoning code 302.055, and shall minimize 

changes in ground cover, loss of natural vegetation, and grade change as much as 
possible.  

 
g. The base of installed infiltration structures or practices must be a minimum of three 

(3) feet above the established ground water table or the Ordinary High Water Level 
of White Bear Lake, whichever is higher. 

 
h. The stormwater management practices shall be designed in accord with the 

Minnesota Stormwater Manual, American Concrete Pavement Association design 
criteria, Center for Watershed Protection, Stormwater BMP Design Supplement for 
Cold Climates, or other design guidance provided by the City. 

 
i. The stormwater management plan shall include the applicant’s description of how 

the practices shall be maintained to function as designed for the long-term. The City 
may inspect the installation of the stormwater management system at the site. 

 



3 
 

j. The applicant shall include the maintenance plan and a maintenance schedule for 
the approved stormwater management practices with the required permit application. 

 
k. The variance shall not be valid unless the applicant properly records the variance at 

the property records at Washington County and a copy of the recording is properly 
returned to the City for verification.” 

 
Currently, this property does not conform to City Code 302.050 IMPERVIOUS SURFACES 
because the application shows that the existing impervious surface coverage 32.35%. The 
proposed impervious surface coverage is 27.7%. 
 
The application provides the information needed to show that the proposed work will meet some 
of the conditions for Variance Request #1. The conditions that are satisfied are the following: 

• Item a. 
• Item c. 
• Item e.  
• Item f. 
• Item g. 
• Item h. 
• Item k. The applicant will record the variance at Washington County, if approved. 

 
The information in the application is helpful, but still does not provide all the information needed 
to show that the proposed work will meet the conditions for Variance Request #1. The additional 
information needed includes the following: 

• Item b.: Additional information is needed regarding the stormwater management plan 
including structures and/or best management practices for the mitigation of stormwater 
impacts on receiving waters in compliance with the City’s Surface Water Management 
Plan, or as approved by the City Engineer, so that the site design includes stormwater 
management practices that control the stormwater runoff volumes, and the post-
construction runoff volume shall be retained on site for 1.1 inches of runoff from 
impervious surfaces. 

o The additional information needed includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
  Clarification of the proposed driveway impervious surface area and its 

pervious surface area. 
 Clarification of whether or not a concrete edge will be installed for the 

pavers. If yes, the concrete edge is considered impervious. 
o For the driveway, patio and sidewalk pavers to obtain a 100% credit for being 

pervious, 100% of the rain that falls on the pavers (including from a 100 year 
storm) must infiltrate into the ground.  
 

• Item d.: Additional best management practices (BMP) are needed for the underground 
infiltration basin (UG Draintile storage) based on the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
Stormwater Manual. The following is needed: 



4 
 

o Pre-treatment to protect the groundwater quality and reduce the risk of small 
particles plugging the underground infiltration basin. 
 Pre–treatment - practices used to reduce, eliminate, or alter pollutants in 

stormwater, primarily sediment, before they are discharged into structural 
stormwater BMPs. Pretreatment practices include settling devices, 
screens, and pretreatment vegetated filter strips. 

 These systems are susceptible to clogging by sediment and organic 
debris. 

 Clogging will adversely impact the life and operation of the BMP. 
 

o Heat cable with built-in thermostat in the downspouts and pipes between the 
downspouts and the infiltration basin for pipe and downspout freeze protection. 
 Minimizes the risk of damage to the house and pipes because of water 

freezing in the downspouts or pipes during the freeze thaw cycle. 
 

o Design to allow active inspection 
 One concern with infiltration in cold weather is the ice that forms both 

over the top of the practice and within the soil structure, which can 
completely stop infiltration. To limit the effect of this problem, it is HIGHLY 
RECOMMENDED that the BMP be actively inspected to ensure that it is 
properly drawing down before it freezes in the late fall. Adequate 
drawdown can be determined using one of the several field assessment 
techniques such as those recommended by the University of Minnesota 
Extension. If it is determined that stormwater runoff is not infiltrating prior 
to hard freeze, the BMP should be placed offline for correction in the 
spring. 
 

o Designed to safely pass large storm flows while still protecting the infiltration 
area. 
 Smaller infiltration practices (e.g. infiltration trenches) should either be 

designed off-line using a flow diversion, or designed to safely pass large 
storm flows while still protecting the infiltration area. 

  
• Item i.: Information regarding the stormwater management plan and shall include the 

applicant’s description of how the practices shall be maintained to function as designed 
for the long-term. 
 

• Item j.: Information regarding the maintenance plan and a maintenance schedule for the 
stormwater management practices. 

Please note that even though there are potential physical clogging problems with infiltration, it is 
one of the most important BMP in stormwater runoff treatment. Fear of the limitations should not 
prevent well designed systems from being used. 

 



5 
 

 
 
 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The lot area is 12,825 square feet according to the plan prepared by Sathre-Bergquist, Inc. 
dated September 7, 2021. The lot is narrow (about 40.0 feet wide) and contains a single-family 
residence and detached garage. 
 
PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY 
 

1) The lot is an undersized lot based on City Code. 
2) The lot is extremely narrow and long.  

 
STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTING VARIANCES 
 
Minnesota State Statute 462.357 allows for a variance to be permitted only when:   

(1) The proposed use is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the City’s 
zoning ordinance;  

(2) The variance is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan; and,  
(3) The applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning 

ordinance. 
 

Statutory criteria used to establish a practical difficulty include: 
(1) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted 

by the zoning ordinance; 
(2) The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created 

by the landowner; and 
(3) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.   

 
 
 
CITY CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTING VARIANCES 
 
Sec 304.040 of the City Code states:  
 

Variances to the strict application of the provisions of the Code may be granted, however, 
no variance may be granted that would allow any use that is prohibited within the City.  
Conditions and safeguards may be imposed on the variances so granted. A variance shall 
not be granted unless the following criteria are met: 

 
SUBD. 1. 

A. Variances shall only be permitted  



6 
 

i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and  
ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are 
practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  

 

SUBD. 2.  "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means that  

i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, 
or building involved. 

ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the 
applicant's action or design solution.  The applicant shall have the burden of proof 
for showing that no other reasonable design solution exists. 

iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining from 
the property. 

iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
property, or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the 
surrounding area, or in any other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the 
residents of the City. 

v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who 
do not object outnumber those who do. 

vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for the 
property exists under terms of the Zoning Code. 

ANALYSIS 
 
The lot is an undersized lot and extremely narrow and long. City Code 302.015 allows 
undersized lots to be utilized for single-family detached dwelling purposes provided the 
measurements of such area, width, or open space are at least 60% of that required. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING VARIANCE APPROVAL 
 
Variance Requests:  
 

1. The plan meets City Code requirements. 
2. The lot is an undersized lot. 
3. This project would preserve the essential character of the locality. 

 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING VARIANCE DENIAL  
 
Variance Requests: 
 

1. A primary goal of the City of Birchwood Village’s Zoning Ordinance is “to ensure that a 
non-conforming use is not intensified and that, over time, the non-conforming use will, 
where possible, be brought into conformity with the Zoning Code.” The following could 
be argued: 

a. That they are not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the 
ordinance. 

b. That the variance is not consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
c. That the Applicant for the variance has not established that there are practical 

difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  
d. The lot does not meet the requirements of City Code 302.015. 

 
CONDITIONS 
 
If approved, a requested variance may be approved subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. All application materials, maps, drawings and descriptive information submitted with this 
application shall become part of the building permit. 

2. Per City Code 304.090, the variance shall become null and void if the project has not 
been completed or utilized within one year after the date it was granted, subject to 
petition for extension by the City Council. 

3. Land alteration my not cause adverse impact upon abutting property.  
4. Applicant shall meet the requirements of City Code 301.055 which states: “For a building 

permit, the applicant must submit stormwater and erosion control plans prepared and 
signed by a licensed professional engineer. The plans must be approved by the city 
engineer and the permit holder must adhere to the approved plans. The stormwater 
management plan must detail how stormwater will be controlled to prevent damage to 
adjacent property and adverse impacts to the public stormwater drainage system.” 

5. The variance shall not be valid unless the applicant properly records the variance at the 
property records at Washington County and a copy of the recording is properly returned 
to the City for verification.” 



Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Completed requests for variances submitted prior to the first Thursday of the month will be 
considered by the Planning Commission at its next meeting on the fourth Thursday of the month. 
Requests submitted after the first Thursday of the month will be considered at the following 
meeting. All final decisions on variance applications are made by the City Council, which meets 
on the second Tuesday every month. 

1. Name of Applicant(s) _____________________________________________________

Address ________________________________________________________________

City ____________________________________ State _______ Zip Code ___________

Business Phone _______________________ Home Phone _______________________

2. Address of Property Involved if different from above: ____________________________

________________________________________________________________________

3. Name of Property Owner(s) if different from above and describe Applicant’s interest in
the property:
________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

4. Specific Code Provision from which Variance is requested: ________________________

5. Describe in narrative form what the Applicant is proposing to do that requires a variance:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

A pervious paver system and a drain tile system have been proposed to mitigate effective hardcover 
to 17% and 20% 
respectively._______________________________________________________________________
_

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
Application Received Date: __________________    Amount Paid: $_________________  

Payment Type (Circle One): Cash / Check / Money Order / Credit Card  

Check/Money Order #_________________  

Application Complete?     Yes   No      If no, date application was deemed complete: ____________ 

Signature of City Planner: __________________________________ Date: __________________ 

City of Birchwood Village 
Petition for Variance Application 

207 Birchwood Ave, Birchwood, MN 55110 
Phone: 651-426-3403 Fax: 651-426-7747 

Email: info@cityofbirchwood.com 

Dr James Barthel

469 Lake Avenue

Birchwood Village MN 55110

Same as above

Same as above

302.050

Existing Home is being demolished and replaced with a new home and attached garage

that better facilitates aging in place. The existing detached garage will remain.

651-283-1451 cellN/A



Page 2 of 4 

6. Type of Project:

New Construction (empty lot)
□ Addition
□ Demolition
□ Landscaping
□ Repair or removal of nonconforming structure

X Other (describe) Demo existing home, keep existing detached garage. Construct new home 
with attached garage____________________________________________________

7. Type of Structure Involved:

□ Single Dwelling □ Double Dwelling
□ Garage □ Addition
□ Tennis Court □ Pool
□ Grading/Filling
□ Other (describe) ____________________________________________________

8. Using the criteria from the City Code for a variance (see last page), explain why a 
variance is justified in this situation and describe what “Practical Difficulties” exist:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

9. Describe any measures the Applicant is proposing to undertake if the variance is granted,
including measures to decrease the amount of water draining from the property:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

10. Describe any alternatives the Applicant considered (if any) that do not require a variance:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

11. Can an emergency vehicle (Fire Truck or Ambulance) access all structures on the
property after the proposed change?    Yes □    No □

□

X
X

X

This is an undersized, very narrow lot. This limits what can be done with the

property.  As I age, I want to be able to stay in my home as long as possible, this will

require an attached garage.  I need to leave the current detached garage in place for storage

for my boat and other equipment.

I have proposed installation of a pervious paving system called Pave Drain, this system is

is currently installed in several locations around the Cities, including right here on the 

lake at the  Mahtomedi Education Center.

There really is no other solution that allows me to remain on my property and age in

place.  The home needs to be replaced, I will need an attached garage and I will also need

to keep the existing detached garage for storage purposes



Page 3 of 4 

12. Does the proposed change bring any other nonconforming use into conformity with the
City Building Code?    Yes □    No □

If yes, explain: ______________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

13. Are there other governmental regulations that apply to the proposed action, including
requirements of the Rice Creek Watershed District?    Yes □    No □

If yes, please identify the regulations AND attach evidence demonstrating compliance:

__________________________________________________________________________

14. Please provide the applicable information in the following Table:

EXISTING PROPOSED CHANGE 

1. Total Square Footage of Lot

2. Maximum Impervious
Surface (25% of item 1)

3. Roof Surface

4. Sidewalks

5. Driveways

6. Other Impervious Surface

7. Total of Items 3-6

8. Percent Impervious Surface

15. Please attach the following:

□ Legal description of property.
□ Plot plan drawn to scale showing existing and proposed new and changed

structures on the lot. Also show existing structures on adjacent lots.

X

X

12,825 Same None

Same

128 pervious

New + Ex. Garage
3,534

1,720 pervious

Patio 344 pervious
Generator/AC 14

3,548

*27.7%

3,206

2,286

691

1,071
Retaining Wall

101

4,149

32.35%

None

+1,248

-691

-1,071

-87

-601

-4.69%
* denotes using the pervious Pave Drain system at 100% credit.  Drain tile system will add 3% to this total still making effective
hardcover less than existing.



Page 4 of 4 

Criteria for Granting a Variance.  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 462.357, subd. 6, as it may be amended 
from time to time, the Planning Commission may issue recommendations to the City Council for variances 
from the provisions of this zoning code.  A variance is a modification or variation of the provisions of this 
zoning code as applied to a specific piece of property. 

Variances to the strict application of the provisions of the Code may be granted, however, no variance may 
be granted that would allow any use that is prohibited within the City.  Conditions and safeguards may be 
imposed on the variances so granted.  A variance shall not be granted unless the following criteria are met: 

SUBD. 1. 

A. Variances shall only be permitted 
i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and
ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan.

B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are practical 
difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  

SUBD. 2.  "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that 

i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building
involved.

ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the applicant's action
or design solution.  The applicant shall have the burden of proof for showing that no other
reasonable design solution exists.

iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining from the
property.

iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, or
unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding area, or in any
other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the City.

v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who do not
object outnumber those who do.

vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for the property
exists under terms of the Zoning Code.

NOTICE: 
*The City and its representatives accept no responsibility for errors and/or damages caused
due to incomplete and/or inaccurate information herein. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant to ensure the accuracy and completeness of this information.  

*The City will hold applicant responsible for any damage to public property that occurs in
the course of performing the activities of this permit. 

*Under penalty of perjury the applicant declares that the information provided in and
enclosed herewith is complete and all documents represented are true and correct 
representations of the actual project/building that will be built in conformance with such 
representation if approved.   

Signature of Applicant:  _______________________________ Date: ___________________ September 9, 2021For Dr. Jim Barthel    Brent Stevens











EXISTING HOUSE

EXISTING HOUSE

EXISTING GARAGE

HOUSE
FOOTPRINT OF 
EXIST. HOUSE

FOOTPRINT OF 
EXIST. DECK

6.0

6.0

24.0

BLDG. SETBACK

SETBACK

BLDG. SETBACK

B
LD

G
. S

E
T

B
A

C
K

SETBACK

EXIST. DOCK

50.0

B
LD

G
. S

E
T

B
A

C
K

W H I T E   B E A R   L A K E

O.H.W.L. = 925.35

L
 A

 K
 E

   A
 V

 E
 N

 U
 E

DRIVEWAY

PERVIOUS WALKWAY

PORCH

PATIO

GEN.
A/C

NEW HOUSE / GARAGE
EXIST. GARAGE
DRIVEWAY
WALKWAY
PATIO
A/C & GENERATOR

TOTAL H.C.
H.C. %
EFFECTIVE H.C. % 

TOTAL LOT

=
=
=
=
=
=

=
=
=

=

2575 SF
959 SF

1720 SF
128 SF
344 SF

14 SF

5740 SF
44.76 %
17.0 %

12,825 SF

(SEE SURVEYS)

HARDCOVER TOTALS

927

928

929930

93
0

928

927

928

929

930

929

92
9 92

8 92
7 92

6

92
5930

92
7

EXIST. RETAINING WALL TO 
BE REMAIN

F.F.E. = 931.0

GARAGE

G.F.E. = 929.9

GARAGE

G.F.E. = 928.6

EXISTING

D
R

IV
E

8.0

929

929

PORCH

18.0

18.0

22.7

28.0

24.0

4.0

5.3

8.3

4.0

2.0

7.0

10.0

5.0

36.0

18.0

14.0

51.7

6.0

18.0

24.0

40.0

40.0

24.0

12.0

PERVIOUS

PERVIOUS

32.0

10
.0

R = 15.0

R = 40.0

(PERVIOUS)
(PERVIOUS)
(PERVIOUS)

TO  20.0 %

PROPOSED FOOTPRINT HELD BEHIND 
"ALIGNMENT LINE" OF ADJACENT 
PROPERTIES (NOT REQ'D)

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A1
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1" = 10'-0"

PRELIMINARY ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

N

(PER EXISTING & PROPOSED SURVEYS PREPARED BY SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.)



22' - 8" 13' - 8" 51' - 8" 6' - 0"

18
' -

 0
"

14
' -

 0
"

32
' -

 0
"

94' - 0"

24
' -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

32
' -

 0
"

28' - 0" 7' - 0" 5' - 0" 36' - 0" 18' - 0"

94' - 0"

2'
 -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

UNEXCAVATED

4" CONC. SLAB

CRAWL / BASEMENT

DEPTH T.B.D.

UNEXCAVATED

4" CONC. SLAB

R = 9' - 0"

OUTLINE OF
PAVER PATIO

9' - 0" 8' - 6" 4' - 0" 13' - 2" 13' - 10" 12' - 0"

4"
 C

O
N

C
. S

LA
B

U
N

E
X

C
A

V
A

T
E

D UP 11R
(VERIFY)

ELEV.
ABOVE

JO
IS

TS
JO

IS
TS

BEAM BEAMBEAM

17
' -

 4
"

14
' -

 8
"

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A2
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1/4" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION PLAN

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

5'0' 10' 20'



GARAGE

27-0 x 23-0

22' - 8" 13' - 8" 51' - 8" 6' - 0"

24
' -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

28' - 0" 7' - 0" 5' - 0" 36' - 0" 18' - 0"

32
' -

 0
"

14
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

32
' -

 0
"

8' - 0"

94' - 0"

94' - 0"

KITCHEN

22-4 x 14-0

DINING ROOM

12-0 x 14-0

LAUNDRY

6-6 x 9-8

PANTRY

WALK-IN

MUD ROOM

POWDER

SCREEN PORCH

CLOSET

O.O.S

LO
C

KE
RS

BRM /
VAC

GREENHOUSE PLANTER
GAS FP

TV ABOVE

ENTRY

14-8 x 6-4

BUILT-IN

UP 18R

ELEVATOR

A/C

FRONT 

PORCH

42" REF

SHELVES DW

SHELVES

TALL 
CAB.

PATIO

4'
 -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

2'
 -

 0
"

TALL 
CAB.

120x46

48" RANGE

SMALL APP. CNTR.

PULL SCREEN

RO
LL

-D
O

W
N

 S
C

RE
EN

ROLL-DOWN SCREEN

12' - 0"

GENERATOR

36" MIN. 36" MIN.

M
IN

.

18
"

S
H

EL
V

ES

5' - 4"

BUILT-IN

BENCH / HOOKS

DN

GREAT ROOM

20-4 x 16-0

R = 9' - 0"

17' - 0" ±

17' - 0" ±

12
-0

x8
-0

 4
-P

A
N

EL
 B

I-F
O

LD
 D

O
O

R

9-0x8-0 3-PANEL BI-FOLD DOOR

LO
C

KE
RS

DROP 
DESK

OPT. PACKAGE 
DELIVERY CLOSET

B
O

O
KS

1/4" = 1'-0"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A3
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

5'0' 10' 20'

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

LIVING SPACE

MAIN LEVEL 1571 SF
UPPER LEVEL 1233 SF
Grand total 2804 SF

ADDITIONAL SPACE

SCREEN PORCH 312 SF
GARAGE 642 SF
FRONT PORCH 50 SF
MASTER TERRACE 312 SF
Grand total 1316 SF

FUTURE SPACE

UNFIN. UPPER LEVEL 506 SF
Grand total 506 SF



4' - 0" 5' - 4" 4' - 0" 12' - 6" 6' - 6" 5' - 11" 6' - 1" 16' - 8"

15' - 10" 6' - 0" 14' - 2"

4'
 -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

9' - 4" 51' - 8"

12' - 0" 36' - 0" 17' - 0"

17
' -

 0
"

15
' -

 0
"

BEDROOM 2

12-2 x 10-0

MASTER BEDROOM

16-0 x 14-0

BEDROOM 3 / OFFICE

12-0 x 13-4

LAUNDRY

5-6 x 12-0

MASTER BATH

11-6 x 10-0

BATH

DN 18R

OPEN TO BELOW

CLOSET

6-0 x 10-0

B
U

IL
T-

IN
 D

ES
K

ELEVATOR

UNFINISHED

65' - 0"

S
H

.

SHELVES

S
H

LV
S S

EA
T

S
H

.

N
IC

H
E

12
' -

 0
"

30' - 0"

FUTURE BUNK / REC / PLAY / EXERCISE ROOM

32
' -

 0
"

MASTER TERRACE

18-0 x 17-0

32
' -

 0
"

12' - 0"

B
O

O
KS

BOOKS

LI
N

EN

LI
N

EN
M

ED

W

D

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A4
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1/4" = 1'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

5'0' 10' 20'

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

LIVING SPACE

MAIN LEVEL 1571 SF
UPPER LEVEL 1233 SF
Grand total 2804 SF

ADDITIONAL SPACE

SCREEN PORCH 312 SF
GARAGE 642 SF
FRONT PORCH 50 SF
MASTER TERRACE 312 SF
Grand total 1316 SF

FUTURE SPACE

UNFIN. UPPER LEVEL 506 SF
Grand total 506 SF



15
:12

15
:12

12
:12

12
:12

2'
 -

 0
"

1' - 0"

2'
 -

 0
"

1' - 0"

MASTER TERRACE

11:12

OPT. 7'x7' SKYLIGHT

FLATFLAT

FL
A

T

FL
A

T

FLAT

11:12

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A5
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1/4" = 1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN



MAIN LEVEL

MAIN PLATE

UPPER LEVEL

UPPER PLATE
9

' -
 6

"
9

' -
 1 

1/8
"

11

12

15/12

12/12

M
A

X.
 H

EI
G

H
T

29
' -

 8
"

11

12

OPT. 7'x7' SKYLIGHT

MAIN LEVEL

MAIN PLATE

UPPER LEVEL

UPPER PLATE

9
' -

 6
"

9
' -

 1 
1/8

"

11/12

OPT. 7'x7' SKYLIGHT

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A6
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1/4" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

(CONCEPTUAL - FINAL DESIGN MAY VARY)

(CONCEPTUAL - FINAL DESIGN MAY VARY)



MAIN LEVEL

MAIN PLATE

UPPER LEVEL

UPPER PLATE
9

' -
 6

"
9

' -
 1 

1/8
"

12/12

15/12

11

12

11

12

A/C & GENERATOR

MAIN LEVEL

MAIN PLATE

UPPER LEVEL

UPPER PLATE

9
' -

 6
"

9
' -

 1 
1/8

"

11/12

M
A

X.
 H

EI
G

H
T

29
' -

 8
"

OBSCURED INSULATED 
TEMP. GLASS GARAGE 

DOOR

ALIGN ENTRY DOOR 
GLAZING W/ GARAGE 
DOOR

15

12

15

12

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET NUMBERNUMBERNUMBERNUMBER

LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:LEGAL NOTICE:
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED OR 

REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF REDISTRIBUTED WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.C    COPYRIGHT 2021 SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC.

464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET464 SECOND STREET
SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  EXCELSIOR, MN 55331  

PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952PH: 952----470470470470----9750975097509750
FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952FAX: 952----767767767767----5859585958595859

info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com info@sharrattdesign.com 

SHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXSHEET INDEXPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAMPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  ARCHITECT  

SHARRATT DESIGN & COMPANY, LLC
464 SECOND STREET, SUITE 100
EXCELSIOR, MN 55331
CONTACT: MIKE SHARRATT  (952-470-9750) 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEERSTRUCTURAL ENGINEER

GENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTORGENERAL CONTRACTOR

ISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FORISSUED FOR

PROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SETPROGRESS SET

MEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SETMEETING SET

VARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SETVARIANCE APP. SET

BID SETBID SETBID SETBID SET

PERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SETPERMIT SET

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SETCONSTRUCTION SET

0
7/

 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1
0

7/
 1
6

/ 
2

1

XXXX

XXXX

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

0
8

/ 
2

6
/ 

2
1

XXXX

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

0
9

/ 
0

7/
 2

1
0

9
/ 

0
7/

 2
1

XXXX

XXXX

A7
T.B.D.

BARTHEL HOME
469 LAKE AVENUE

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF THE:

WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN18324 MINNETONKA BLVD
KYLE HUNT & PARTNERS

DEEPHAVEN, MN 55391
CONTACT:  (952-476-5999)

1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

A5 ROOF PLAN
A6 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A2 FOUNDATION PLAN
A3 MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A4 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

(CONCEPTUAL - FINAL DESIGN MAY VARY)

(CONCEPTUAL - FINAL DESIGN MAY VARY)











          SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES (Draft) 

Birchwood Planning Commission Special Meeting 

                                     Zoom Virtual Meeting – 6:00 PM Meeting 10/7/2021 

Submitted by Michael Kraemer – acting secretary 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: – Andy Sorenson – Chairman, Ryan Hankins – Vice 
Chairman, Michelle Maiers-Atakpu, Joe Evans Michael Kraemer. 

 COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:   

 OTHERS PRESENT:  Darren DeYoung, Luke Wippler, Jonathan Miller, Ken and Lynell 
Vandermeer, Suzie and Larry Mahoney, Steve Thatcher, Tony Nickolaus, Ralph Heimer, 
Scott Freeberg, Alyson Landmark,  Scott and Karen Freeberg.  

1. CALL TO ORDER Meeting called to order by Chairman Andy Sorenson at 6:02 PM. 
 

2. PUBLIC FORUM – no one spoke 
3. APPROVE AGENDA 

a.  Moved  Maiers-Atakpu Second Hankins.  To approve agenda as listed. Vote Yes – 
5, No – 0. Motion passed.  

4. Agenda Item A - Variance Case No. 21-04-VB (117 Wildwood Avenue) – Garage 
Construction  

a. Public Hearing  
i. Opened 6:04 PM 

ii. Closed 6:21 PM 
iii. Comments:  

1. A public comment memo dated October 3,2021 submitted by 
Ralph Heimer, 109 Wildwood Ave, Birchwood requesting denial of 
the variance was emailed to Commission members on 
10.3.2021and not included in packets. Mr. Heimer presented the 
email at the public hearing.  

2. August 26, 2021 memo from Doug Danks retracting his previous 
report approving building permit was sent out via email to 
Commission members on 10.6.2021 and not included in packets. 
Commission determined that since plan reviewer’s report was not 
public information, it could not be discussed during the meeting.  

b. Review & Discuss 
i. Variance Request #1 – Section 301.050 Non-Conforming Uses 

1. Planning Commission Findings: 
a. Jonathan Miller, attorney representing Nickolaus property 

indicated permit to build new 24’ x 30’ garage as 



replacement of original 14’ x 16’ shed was issued on 
August 18, 2021 and then rescinded. Nickolaus maintain 
they were not told the reason why.  

b. Mr Miller indicated the reason the 180-day deadline to 
rebuild after the June 22,2020 destruction of the old shed 
was missed because of pandemic and City staff response 
delays and not responsibility of property owner.  

c. Tony Nickolaus, property owner, expressed concerns over 
the lack of continuity and follow through on part of City 
staff. Mr. Nickolaus expressed displeasure that variance 
request was required and notification printed in local 
paper using their name without their knowledge or 
permission.  

d. Commissioner Maiers-Atakpu reiterated, rebuilding and 
expanding an existing non-conforming detached garage, is 
not the perpetuation of a non-conforming use but rather 
the expansion which is prohibited by code.  

e. Due to lack of verifiable documentation of issues and 
accusations on both sides of the discussion and due to lack 
of presence of members of City staff involved in this 
project review, a motion was made by Hankins to close the 
discussion. 2nd by  Maiers-Atakpu. Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0. 
Motion passed.    

ii. Planning Commission Action: 
1. Motion by Hankins a second by Maiers-Atakpu to make no 

determination because application is not complete because of the 
conflicting nature of the documentation.  Vote Yes- 5, No -0 
Motion passed. No determination made. 

5. Agenda Item B - Variance Case No. 21-05-VB/Conditional Use Permit (339 Wildwood 
Avenue)  

a. Public Hearing 
i. Opened 6:54 PM 

ii. Closed 7:06 PM 
iii. Comments: 

1. Luke Wippler explained the purpose of the proposed lakeside 
retaining wall is to protect against slope erosion, provide methods 
to safely traverse the hillside and provide for safe boat lift and 
dock storage. 

2. Scott Freeberg neighbors to 339 Wildwood Ave raised questions 
on the construction limits and final restoration plans.  



3. Review memo by City Engineer Thatcher Engineering identified 
four separate variance issues identified in the global variance 
request for variance from the retaining wall setback from the 
OHW.  For purposes of clarity the four variance requests were 
discussed and voted on separately.  The results are indicated in 
the following.  

b. Review & Discuss 
i. Variance Request #1 – Code 302.020 – Structure Location Requirements 

1. Planning Commission Finding:  
a. The proposed retaining wall distance is 20’ – 25’ from the 

OHW’. This is not in compliance with the Code 50’ setback 
302.020 – Structure Location Requirements. 

b. Practical difficulties related to slope stability that supports 
and defends why the retaining wall should be constructed.  

c. Other methods of slope stability exist such as vegetative 
ground cover and plantings. Owner’s preference is to 
utilize boulder retaining wall to stabilize the slope midway 
and provide protection uphill for upcoming shoreline rip 
rap installation.  

d. Commissioner Kraemer indicated that in his opinion the 
retaining wall was being requested as a convenience for 
storage of dock and boat lifts and did not represent 
practical difficulties any different than other properties on 
the lake where permits for retaining walls had been 
denied.   

2. Planning Commission Recommendations: 
a.  Motion to recommend approval of Variance #1.  

i. Motion: Sorenson, 2nd Evans, Vote: Yes – 3, No – 2. 
Kraemer & Maiers-Atakpu dissenting. Motion 
passed.  

ii. Variance Request #2 – Code 302.050 - Impervious Surface Requirements 
1. Planning Commission Findings: 

a. The property is not in compliance with City Code with an 
impervious surface ration of 28%.  The variance if 
approved would increase that ratio to 29%.  

b. City Engineer – Steve Thatcher, September 22, 2021 memo 
states that on September 20,2021 the applicant 
successfully provided the information which supports the 
proposed work will meet the conditions of Variance #2  

2. Planning Commission Action: 



a. Motion to recommend approval of Variance Request #2 – 
Impervious Surface requirements via incorporating 
proposed mitigation measures and including adding all of 
“Conditions” 1- 5 identified in the 9.22.2021 Thatcher 
Engineering Review memo. Motion by Kraemer, 2nd 
Sorenson, Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0 Motion passed.  

iii. Variance Request #3 – Code 302.055 - Grading Within 20 Feet of OHW 
1. Planning Commission Findings: 

a. According to City Engineer Thatcher’s September 22, 2021 
memo and City Plan Reviewer Doug Danks September 22, 
2021 memo on 338 Wildwood Avenue – Revised Variance, 
Zoning Permit and Conditional Use Permit Applications 
2021 the retaining wall and associated land disturbances 
as proposed have been revised to locate the work outside 
the 20’-0” setback from the OHW. As a result, this variance 
is not needed.  

2. Planning Commission Action: 
a. No action taken as this variance is not needed per the 

relocation of the wall and associated grading.  
iv. Variance Request #4 – City Code 302.070 – City Fence Ordinance Part 5 

Retaining Walls in Excess of 4’  
1. Planning Commission Findings 

a. The preliminary drawings show potential boulder wall 
build height of 5’.  No professional engineering 
certification or plan was provided.  

b. City Engineer Steve Thatcher (in attendance) indicated the 
boulder retaining wall plans exposed wall face is 4’ in 
height and is compliant with Code.  No variance required.  

2. Planning Commission Action 
a. No action taken as Planning Commission determined no 

variance was necessary.    
 

6. Agenda Item C - Variance Case No. 21-06-VB (469 Lake Avenue)  
a. Planning Commission member Michael Kraemer recused himself from the 

Commission for this topic because the Variance relates to the property adjacent 
to his home.  

b. Variance Request #1 – Variance from City Code 302.050 (IMPERVIOUS 
SURFACES) 

i. Public Hearing 
1. Opened 7:50 
2. Closed 8:06 



3. Comments: 
a. Mike and Candice Kraemer submitted a public comment 

memo on Case No. 21-06-VB (469 Lake Avenue) dated 
10.5.2021 to the City Administrator Gonyou and the 
Commission.  

b. Dr. Barthel explained his plans to rebuild the existing 
home to better accommodate his life style.  

c. Brent Stevens, builder explained the driveway paver and 
runoff infiltration system proposed for the property. Mr 
Stevens indicated the resultant impervious ratio of 32% 
would be reduced to a resultant impervious ratio of 23% 
using the PaveDrain system.  

d. Suzie Mahoney – 479 Lake Ave 
i. Expressed concern that the proposed driveway 

adjacent to Kraemer property line may create 
operational problems long term. 

ii. Expressed concern about the amount of lot area 
taken up by the house structure and long term 
impact and declined of the pervious areas. 

e. Larry Mahoney – 479 Lake Ave 
i. Expressed concern that the proper maintenance 

program be utilized to keep the pervious paver and 
infiltration systems functioning.  

ii. Shared that the City of Mahtomedi is experiencing 
operational problems with pervious paver systems 
and now considers pavers as impervious surfaces.    

ii. Review & Discuss 
1. Planning Commission Findings 

a. September 24, 2021 variance review memo for City 
Engineer Steve Thatcher states the variance request does 
not provide all the information needed to show that the 
proposed work will meet the conditions of Variance 
Request.  

b. City Engineer Steve Thatcher indicated he had received 
additional infiltration system design information  from 
Brent Stevens site designer for 469 Lake Ave, just prior to 
the meeting  but had not had a chance to review the 
information. Mr. Thatcher was particularly concerned 
about the challenge to meet the 3’ separation required by 
Code between the OHW/ground water and the bottom of 
the infiltration system.  



c. Brent Stevens – drainage system designer for 469 Lake Ave 
indicated a paver/drainage system maintenance 
agreement would be part of the system design.  

d. Commissioner Hankins questioned the 6’ side yard setback 
indicated on the plans. Commissioner Hankins indicated he 
felt the builder was in error assuming the Code 302.015 
60% threshold for pre-existing small lots applies to the 
Codes setback requirements also. 

e. Brent Stevens, (builder) indicated City Plan Reviewer Doug 
Danks had informed them application of the 60% factor 
from Code 302.015 applies to side yard setbacks also. Mr 
Stevens indicated Mr. Danks had indicated no variance 
application related to side yard setbacks was required. Mr. 
Danks was not available to confirm this statement.  

2. Planning Commission Action 
a. Motion by Sorenson to recommend approval of Variance 

Request #1 – Variance from City Code 302.050 
IMPERVIOUS SURFACES using mitigation measures to 
achieve the 25% guideline provided the conditions of the 
impervious surface code are met, approved, and signed off 
on by City Engineer. This includes an accepted stormwater 
management plan filed with deed for operation, testing 
and maintenance of the infiltration system as proposed by 
the homeowner.  2nd by Evans, Vote: Yes – 3, No – 1 
Hankins dissenting, Kraemer abstaining.  Motion carried.  

7. Additional Advisory Recommendations to Council 
a. Planning Commission recommends the City Council authorize the Planning 

Commission to review and make recommendations on:  
i. Code Section 302.020 – Structure Location Requirements.  In particular 

focus on the rationale surrounding the 50’ setback requirements for 
retaining walls.  

ii. Impervious Surface Ratios 
iii. Setback requirements for small lots.  

b. The Planning Commission recommends the City Council, City Staff, and Planning 
Commission hold a joint discussion to improve the communication and 
information transfer related to permitting, variances, and project review.  

i. Prior to this 10.7.2021 meeting it appears the three variance applications 
considered at the meeting had been in the City’s que for over a month, 
with incomplete, missing, and outdated reports and documents. In 
addition, meeting and property notifications, web site postings of 
support documents were late and incomplete. We must do better.  



ii. Add “date received” documentation on any and all applications.  
iii. Establish application routing and signoff protocol.  

  
8. Adjournment  

a. At 8:37 PM motion by Hankins and 2nd by Maiers-Atakpu to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0.  Motion passed.  

 

 

 


	October 18 2021 Special Meeting Council Agenda
	September 14 2021 Birchwood Village City Council Meeting Minutes
	Treasurers Report
	Cash Control
	Disbursements Register
	Receipts Register
	210
	406
	601
	605

	ADPE603.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBDIVISION OF LAND
	IN THE CITY ZONING CODE

	Blank Page
	21-05-VB Complete Packet for 10.07.21 PC Meeting.pdf
	339 Wildwood - Revised Permit Applications 2021
	2021-9-22 TEI Memorandum - Regarding Variance Request by 339 Wildwood Avenue - Wippler Residence
	Petition For Variance Application - 339 Wildwood Ave
	Building Permit Application - 339 Wildewood Ave
	Project Description - 339 Wildwood Ave
	Certificate Of Survey - 339 Wildwood Ave
	IMG_5993 - 339 Wildwood Ave
	NDS Dry Well System
	NDS Rainwater Storage Capacities
	Survey Basemap And Proposed Plan - 339 Wildwood Ave
	RCWD Permit 21-063 - 339 Wildwood Ave
	Permittee Name
	Luke Wippler
	Permittee Contact

	Cash Paid By
	Overall Surety Paid
	SPECIAL STIPULATIONS
	EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL STIPULATIONS
	GENERAL PROVISIONS


	21-06-VB Complete Packet for 10.07.21 PC Meeting.pdf
	2021-9-24 TEI Memorandum - Regarding Variance Request by 469 Lake Avenue
	Barthel Variance Application - Signed
	2021-09-07 - Barthel - 3D Views
	3D Views
	3D View 1
	3D View 2
	3D View 3
	3D View 4


	2021-09-07 - Barthel - Variance Set
	Sheets
	A1 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
	A2 - FOUNDATION PLAN
	A3 - MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
	A4 - UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
	A5 - ROOF PLAN
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A7 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	4930-042 COS PAVEDRAIN CONCEPT xxxx)
	4930-042 COS UG CONCEPT  09072021Axxx

	Blank Page



